LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
BUTLER COUNTY

SINGLE AUDIT

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Jim PETRO
AUDITOR OF STATE

STATE OF OHIO




Lakota Local School District



TABLE OF CONTENTS

TITLE PAGE
Report of Independent Accountants . ......... ... ... . ... .. (Under Separate Cover)
Schedule of Federal Awards Expenditures .. ... .. . 1
Notes to the Schedule of Federal Awards Expenditures . ........ ... .. ... . . . . . i ... 2

Report of Independent Accountants on Compliance and on
Internal Control Required by Governmental Auditing Standards . ............. ... ... .. ... ..... 3

Report of Independent Accountants on Compliance with Requirements
Applicable to Each Major Federal Program and Internal Control over
Compliance in Accordance with OMB-Circular A-133 . ... ... ... . e 5

Schedule of FINAINGS . .. ..o e 7

Lakota Local School District



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

Lakota Local School District



SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDITURES
JUNE 30, 1999

FEDERAL GRANTOR Pass Through Federal
Pass Through Grantor Entity CFDA Non-Cash Non-Cash
Program Title Number Number Receipts Receipts Disbursements Disbursements

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Passed Through Ohio Department of Education:

Donated Commodities 10.550 $0 $158,601 $0 $177,022
Child Nutruition Cluster:
National School Lunch Program 03-PU-98 10.555 39,385 39,385
04-PU-98 10.555 25,505 25,505
03-PU-99 10.555 110,485 110,485
04-PU-99 10.555 76,136 76,136
National School Breakfast Program 05-PU-99 10.553 273 273
Total Child Nutruition Cluster 251,784 0 251,784 0
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 251,784 158,601 251,784 177,022

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Telecommunications Act E-Rate Grant N/A 84.XXX 35,484 0 0 0

Passed Through Ohio Department of Education:

Special Education Cluster:
Special Education Grants to States

(IDEA Part B) 6B-SF-98 84.027 75,340 0 94,837 0

6B-SF-99 84.027 355,959 0 300,246 0

Total Title VI-B Grant 431,299 0 395,082 0

Special Education - Preschool Grant PG-S1-97 84.173 (820) 0 6,579 0

PG-S1-98 84.173 36,475 0 25,270 0

Tota Preschool Grant 35,655 0 31,849 0

Total Special Education Cluster 466,954 0 426,931 0
Grants to Local Educational Agencies

(ESEA Title I) C1-S1-98 84.010 3,011 0 3,470 0

C1-81-99 84.010 225,742 0 222,066 0

Total Title | Grant 228,753 0 225,536 0

Innovative Educational Program

Title VI - Stragies C2-51-96 84.298 0 13,896 0

C2-51-98 84.298 34,063 0 40,223 0

C2-S1-99 84.298 32,114 0 10,325 0

Total Title VI Grant 66,178 0 64,444 0

Drug-Free Schools Grant DR-S1-98 84.186 23,595 0 25,786 0

DR-S1-99 84.186 55,012 0 34,226 0

Total Drug-Free Schools Grant 78,607 0 60,012 0

Dwight D. Eisenhower Grant MS-§1-97 84.281 (1,446) 0 1,052 0

MS-S1-98 84.281 24,433 0 10,963 0

MS-S1-99 84.281 15,820 0 14,864 0

Total Dwight D. Eisenhower Grant 38,806 0 26,879 0

Goal 2000 - Subsidy 2 - School to Work WK-BE-98 17.249 18,682 0 332 0

Goal 2000 - Subsidy 4 - Family & School Partnership G2-S4-98 84.276 3,000 0 987 0

Goal 2000 - Subsidy 4 G2-S4-98 84.276 0 0 512 0

Total Goal 2000 21,682 0 1,830 0

Emergency Imigration Act 84 EI-S1-98 84.162 0 0 2,843 0

EI-S1-99 84.162 6,968 0 93 0

Total Emergency Imigration Act 84 6,968 0 2,936 0

Total Department of Education 943,432 0 808,569 0

Totals $1,195,216 $158,601 $1,060,353 $177,022

The accompanying notes to this schedule are an integral part of this schedule.
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NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDITURES
JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE A - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying Schedule of Federal Awards Expenditures (the Schedule) summarizes activity of the
District’s federal award programs. The Schedule has been prepared on the cash basis of accounting.

NOTE B - MATCHING REQUIREMENTS

Certain Federal programs require that the District contribute non-Federal funds (matching funds) to support
the Federally-funded programs. The District has complied with the matching requirements. The expenditure
of non-Federal matching funds is not included on the Schedule.

NOTE C - FOOD DISTRIBUTION

Nonmonetary assistance, such as food received from the U.S. Department of Agriculture, is reported in the
Schedule at the fair market value of the commodities received and consumed. Cash Receipts form the U.S.
Department of Agriculture are commingled with State grants. It is assumed federal monies are expended
first. At June 30, 1999, the District had no significant commodities in inventory.

NOTE D - MISCELLANEOUS GRANTS
Negative receipts appear on the Schedule of Federal Awards Expenditures for the Special Education

Preschool and Dwight D. Eisenhower Grants. The negative numbers indicate that a reversal/refund of prior
federal funds received by the District, were being repaid to the grantor agency.
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250 West Court Street

Suite 150 E

Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

Telephone 513-361-8550
800-368-7419

Facsimile 513-361-8577

www.auditor.state.oh.us

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS ON COMPLIANCE AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Lakota Local School District
Butler County

5030 Tylersville Road

West Chester, OH 45069

To the Board of Education:

We have audited the financial statements of Lakota Local School District, Butler County, Ohio (the District)
as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated January 14,
2000. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination
of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was
not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards. However, we noted certain immaterial instances of noncompliance that we have reported to
management of the District in a separate letter dated January 14, 2000.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District’s internal control over financial reporting in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. However, we noted
a certain matter involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to
be a reportable condition. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention related to
significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over financial reporting that in our
judgement, could adversely affect the District’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
data consistent with the assertions of management in the financial statements. The reportable condition
is described in the accompanying schedule of findings as item 1999-10409-001.

A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control
components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be
material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely
period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the
internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that
are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, we do not consider the reportable conditions
described above to be a material weakness.

Lakota Local School District 3
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We also noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that do not require
inclusion in this report, that we have reported to management of the District in a separate letter dated
January 14, 2000.

This reportis intended for the information and use of the audit committee, management, Board of Education,

and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used
by anyone other than these specified parties.

Jim Petro
Auditor of State

January 14, 1999
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250 West Court Street

Suite 150 E

Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

Telephone 513-361-8550
800-368-7419

Facsimile 513-361-8577

www.auditor.state.oh.us

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Lakota Local School District
Butler County

5030 Tylersville Road

West Chester, OH 45069

To the Board of Education:
Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Lakota Local School District, Butler County, Ohio (the District) with the
types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular
A-133, Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1999. The District's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants applicable to its major federal programs are the responsibility of the District's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the District's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance occurred with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the District’'s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination on the District’'s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that
are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the Districtis responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In
planning and performing our audit, we considered the District’s internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine
our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

Lakota Local School District 5
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We noted a certain matter involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider
to be a reportable condition. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to
significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over compliance that, in our
judgment, could adversely affect District’s ability to administer a major federal program in accordance with
applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. A reportable condition is described in
the accompanying schedule of findings as items 1999-10409-001.

A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control
components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would be material in relation to a major federal
program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal
course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the internal control over compliance
would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be reportable conditions and,
accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be material
weaknesses. However, we do not consider the reportable condition described above to be a material
weakness.

We also noted another matter involving the internal control over federal compliance that does not require
inclusion in this report, that we have reported to management of District in a separate letter dated January
14, 2000.

Schedule of Federal Awards Expenditures

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the District as of and for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1999 and have issued our report thereon dated January 14, 2000. Our audit was performed for the
purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole. The
accompanying schedule of federal awards expenditures is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the general purpose financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the general
purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

This reportis intended for the information and use of the audit committee, management, Board of Education,

and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used
by anyone other than these specified parties.

Jim Petro
Auditor of State

January 14, 1999
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS

OMB CIRCULAR A -133 § .505

JUNE 30, 1999

1. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

(d)(1)(i) Type of Financial Statement Opinion Unqualified
(d)(1)(ii) Were there any material control weakness No
conditions reported at the financial statement level
(GAGAS)?
(d)(1)(ii) Were there any other reportable control weakness Yes
conditions reported at the financial statement level
(GAGAS)?
(d)(1)(iii) Was there any reported material non-compliance at | No
the financial statement level (GAGAS)?
(d)(1)(iv) Were there any material internal control weakness No
conditions reported for major federal programs?
(d)(1)(iv) Were there any other reportable internal control Yes
weakness conditions reported for major federal
programs?
(d)(1)(v) Type of Major Programs’ Compliance Opinion Unqualified
(d)(1)(vi) Are there any reportable findings under § .5107? Yes

(d)(1)(vii)

Major Programs (list):

Special Education Cluster :
Special Education Grants to
States - CFDA # 84.027
Special Education-Preschool
Grant - CFDA # 84.173

(d)(1)(vii)

Dollar Threshold: Type A\B Programs

Type A: > $ 300,000
Type B: all others

(d)(1)(ix)

Low Risk Auditee?

Yes

2. FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS

FINDING NUMBER 1999-10409-001

Reportable Condition

The District performed year end closings and prepared annual financial reports without reconciling their cash
balances to the general ledger for May and June 1999. Cash reconciliations are a pertinent function for all
information concerning any errors or
misappropriations of funds that may have occurred, as well as the entity’s cash position on a given date.
Cash reconciliations should be performed and reviewed in a timely manner to provide management with an
understanding of the District’s cash activity, and as a management tool for detecting transaction errors.

governmental

The cash balances were reconciled to the general ledger through June 30, 1999 during the course of the

audit.

entities.

A reconciliation provides useful

Lakota Local School District




SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
OMB CIRCULAR A -133 § .505
JUNE 30, 1999
(Continued)

3. FINDINGS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

Finding Number 1999-10409-001
CFDA Title and Number Special Education Grants to States - CFDA # 84.027
Special Education-Preschool Grant - CFDA # 84.173
Federal Award Number / Year 6B-SF-99
PG-S1-98
Federal Agency U.S. Department of Education
Pass-Through Agency Ohio Department of Education

Reportable Condition

See GAGAS finding # 1999-10409-001 above: this finding is also required to be reported in accordance with
OMB Circular A-133.
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To the Citizens and Board of Education of the Lakota Local School District: Relations

We ate pleased to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Lakota Local School
District {District) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the
presented data, and the completeness and faimess of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with
the District. This report is prepared in conformance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAFP)

" as sef forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and other recognized authoritative
sources. We believe the enclosed data is fairly presented in all material aspects and is reported in & manner
designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various funds and account
groups of the District. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the
District’s financial activities have been included. This report has been prepared by the Chief Financial
Officer’s Office and includes the unqualified opinion of the Auditor of the State of Ohio.

The CAFR is presented in the following three sections:

Introductory Section ~ This section introduces the reader fo the report and includes the table of contents,
this transmnittal letter, list of consultants, advisors and legal counsel, list of principal and elected officials,
the District’s organizational chart and Ohio map.

Financial Section — This section includes the gencral-purpose financial statements and the combining and
individual fund and account group financial statements and schedules, as well as the auditor’s report.

Statistical Section — The information presented in this section is designed to reflect social and economic
data, financial trends, and the fiscal capacity of the District. Copies of this report will be widely distributed
throughout the District. A copy will be sent to all school buildings, the Chamber of
Commerce, Butler County Administrative Offices, Union Township, Liberty Township, other governments
in Butler County, the branches of the Butler County Public Library located within the District, Moody’s
financial rating services, realtors, and any other interested parties.

THE REPORTING ENTITY AND SERVICES PROVIDED

This report includes all funds and account groups for which the district is financially accountable based on
the criteria of financial accountability set forth in GASB Statement 14. The district is however, affiliated
with the Southwestern Ohio Computer Association and the Butler County Health Plan, and Butler County
Joint Vocational School District, which are jointly governed organizations. These organizations do not
meet the criteria of GASB Statement 14 and, therefore, are not included in the district’s financial
statements. The district included no component unit reports in the financial statements.

The District provides a full range of traditional and non-traditional educational programs and services.
These include elementary and secondary curriculum offerings at the general, college preparatory, advanced

Office of the Supermtendent * 5030 Tylersville Road * West Chester, Ohio 45069-1082 « 513!874 5505 « Fax: 513/874-0951
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placement, gifted, special education and vocational levels; a2 broad range of co-curricular and extra-
curricular activities, special education programs and community recreation activities.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

Located in Butler County and situated between Cincinnati to the south and Dayton to the north, the Lakota

Local School District serves a population of approximately 33,362 people. Within the District boundaries
is the community of West Chester, Liberty Township, and the majority of Union Township. These rapidly
growing and thriving communities are a blend of residential, business, high technology, and light
industrial areas. Convenient access to interstate highway 75, and interstate connector I-275 has helped in
the spectacular growth of the area durmg the last twenty years. The greater Cincinnati/Dayton areas have
long been noted as one of the premier areas to live and work in the United States.

A very strong industrial base in Urion Township at the Union Center Boulevard corridor located off
Interstate 75, is currently in mid-development stage. A tax incentive district supports this multi-use
development. The School District has entered into an agreement with the Union Township Trustees to
provide the District reimbursement for lost tax revenue as a result of the tax incentives used to attract new
businesses. In addition, significant residential growth in Union and Liberty Townships, continues to
provide a stable tax base for the eastern portlon of Butler County as well as stable growth for the District
for many years. With general economic conditions improving, prospects for continued growth look
favorable.

The District is continually challenged by the responsibility bestowed upon it by the community. We are
always striving to provide the very best opportunities to every child, while carefully managing the
District’s resources.

MAJOR INITIATIVES FOR THE 1998-99 SCHOOL YEAR

A variety of instructional initiatives were accomplished during the year to improve student achievement
and continue fo increase the quality of education at Lakota.

Elementary Mathematics
During the 1998-99 school year, Lakota began an extensive system of improvements in elementary
mathematics. This effort includes:

e New opportunities for fifth and sixth grade students to receive more individualized instruction
through ability grouping

* Better communication with parents about mathematics initiatives through a quarterly math
newsletter

e A comprehensive curriculum revision based on current research, including the Third International
Math and Science Study.

The goals of this effort are to improve fourth and sixth grade math proficiency scores, and to prepare more
students for algebra instruction by the eighth grade.

Technology

Providing access to state-of-the-art technology is a priority in Lakota’s five-year Sirategic Plan. This year,
a number of pro_:ects helped move the district toward the goals of one computer for every five students and
fast internet access in every school;

¢ Union Township fiber network was completed, linking 12 of Lakota’s 17 schools; the Liberty
Township network is scheduled for completion in 1999. This will save the district more than
$4000 per month in online charges while improving access speed.



s All classroom computers have been retrofitted to have identical desktops, security, and network
access to standardize what the user sees and to improve service and support.

e  Web Collection, a computer-based library management system, was tested successfully.

e Computer labs at the three junior schools and freshman school were upgraded, helping to push the
ratio of multimedia computers in the district to one for every 7.5 students.

Professional Development

During 1998-99, Lakota invested more than $250,000 in coursework and training for teachers and
staff. The primary source of that professional development wag the Mayerson Academy, a Cincinnati-
based organization dedicated to educational professional development. The Mayerson Academy
served Lakota’s professional development needs in several ways:

» Using a combination of distance learning technology and on-gite workshops, the program on
effective instruction begun in 1997 continued with more than 200 staff members participating.

e Mayerson staff worked with the math cwriculum committee and administrators on
tnstructional alignment.

e Al Lakota administrators participated in an extensive leadership program.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The District’s accounting system is organized on 2 “fund” basis. Each fund and account group is a distinct,
self-balancing entity. Records for general governmental operations are maintained on a cash basis system
of accounting as prescribed by the Auditor of State. Cagh basis accounting differs from GAAP as
promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). GAAP, as more fully described
in the notes to the financial statements, provides for a modified accrual basis of accounting for the General
Fund, Special Revenne Funds, Debt Service Fund, Capital Project Funds, Expendable Trust and Agency
Funds, and for full accrual basis of accounting for all other funds.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control stracture
designed to insure that the assets of the District are protected from loss, thefl, or misuse and to ensure that
adequate accounting date are compiled to allow t\for the preparation of financial statements in conformity
with GAAP. The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognized that: (1) the cost of a control
should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived from its implementation; and (2) the valuation of cost
and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

SINGLE AUDIT ACT

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District is responsible for ensuring that an
adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations
related to those programs. This interpal control structure is subject to periodic evaluation by management
of the Disfrict.

BUDGETARY CONTROLS

The District maintains its accounts, appropriations, and éther financial records in accordance with the
procedures established and prescribed by the Auditor of State, The objective of these budgetary controls is
to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriation resolution approved by
the Board of Education. The level of budgetary control (the level at which expenditures cannot legally
exceed the appropriated amount) is established by function and object of expenditure within an individual
fund. The District also maintains an encumbrance accounting system as one technique of accomplishing



budgetary control. Encumbered amounts at year-end are carried forward to succeeding years and are not
re-appropriated. As demonsirated by the statements and schedules inciuded in the financial section of this
report, the District continues meeting its responsibility for sound finarcial management.

GENERAL GOVERNMENT FUNCTIONS

Revenues for the District’s general operating fund totaled $73,537,917, representing a decrease of
$1,247,475 (1.67%) over 1998. The decrease was primarily due to a decrease in taxes revenue resulting
from a decrease in the amount available on June 30, 1999.

The amount of 1999 revenues and increases (decreages) over 1998 are presented below:

Increase Percent of
Percent of (Decrease) Increase

Revenues Amount Total From 1998 {Decrease)
Taxes $42,983,537 58.45% (3,308,374) (7.15%
Tuition and Fees - 381,159 0.52% (10,383) (2.65)%
Eamings on Investments 1,264,336 1.72% (199,417) (13.62)%
Other Local Revenues 526,446 0.72% (118,284) (18.35)%
Intergovernmental 28,252,764 38.42% 2,382,491 9.21%
Extracurricular 129.675 £.17% 6,492 5.27%
Total $73,537,917 100% (1,247,475) (1.67)%

Expenditures for the District’s general operating fund totaled $75,247,679, representing an increase of
36,525,179 (9.5%) over 1998, The increase was primarily due to increases in: regular instruction, resulting
from an increase in the amount of teachers; special instruction, resulting from an increase in the special

education population, and support services central expenditures due to additional personnel.

The amount of 1999 expenditures increases (decreages) are presented below:

Increase Percent of
Percent of (Decrease) Increase
Expenditures Amount Total From 1998 {Decrease)
Instruction: )
Regular $38,616,055 T 51.32% 3,999,449 11.55%
Special 5,254,505 7.00% 699,350 15.35%
Vocational 246,573 0.33% (33,285 {(11.89)%
Other 111,550 0.15% 7,181 6.88%
Support Services:
Pupil 4,053,907 539% 263,403 6.95%
Instructional 3,733,793 4.96% 134,504 3.74%
Board of Education 32,985 0.04% 2,899 9.64%
Administration 6,094,554 8.10% 408,556 7.19%
Fiscal and Business 1,558,603 2.07% 288,938 22.76%
Operations and Maint. 7,640,348 10.15% 608,147 8.65%
Pupil Transportation 5,398,641 7.17% 559,395 (9.39)%
Central ' 691,574 0.92% 242,947 54.15%
Noninstructional 8,065 0.01% 4,463 123.90%
Extracurricular Activ. 1,310,626 1.74% 119,162 10.00%
Capital Qutlay 104,955 0.14% (9,607) (8.40)%
Debt Service 390,445 0.51% 348,467 £30.00%
Total $75,247,679 100% $6,525,179 9.50%



Special Revenue Funds
Special Revenue funds account for certain revenue sources restricted by law or other formal actions to be

expended for a specific purpose. The sources are primarily grants and entitlements. In 1999, all Special
Revenue Funds on a combined basis operated with $2,586,471 in revenues and other financing sources and
$2,047,913 in expenditures and other financing uses.

Capital Projects Funds

The District’s Capital Projects Fund is used to fund major equipment purchases and major capital
improvement projects such as computers (School Net), parking lots, bus purchases, roofs and heating and
air conditioning plants. These funds ended the 1999 fiscal year with a fund balance of $1,458,016.

Trust and Agency Funds o
Trust and Agency funds require a fiduciary relationship in their management by the District. The District’s

Expendable Trust Fund had a fund balance of $58,266 at June 30, 1999. The Agency funds utilized by the
District include a Student Activity Fund and a Retirements Fund. Agency fund liabilities totaled $248,592
at June 30, 1999, '

Enterprise Funds )
The District’s Enterprise Funds are Food Service, Uniform School Supplies, and Adult Education Funds.

These funds are similar in nature to profit making activities found in the private sector and are managed
accordingly. District Enterprise Funds operated in 1999 with $3,121,644 in operating revenues and
recorded a net income of $126,541,

Internal Service Fund

The Internal Service Funds account for the Special Rotary Fund, Employee Benefits Fund and Worker’s
Compensation Fund for fiscal 1999. All Internal Service Funds showed a net loss of $100,020. Of this
amount, the funds contributed as follows: Special Rotary $97,203, Employee Benefits $445,366, and
Workers Compensation ($642,589).

Debt Service Fund )
This section describes statutory and constitutional debt and ad valorem property tax limitations applicable
to the Board and the District, and the Board’s current oufstanding note indebtedness.

Statutory Direct Debt Limitations: The Chio Revised Code provides that the net principal amount of
unvoted general obligation debt of a school district incurred without a vote of the electors, exclusive of
certain exempt debt, may not exceed one-tenth of one percent of the total value of all property in the district
as listed and assessed for taxation. The Board at present has no unvoted debt issued as June 30, 1999,
subject to this limitation. The total net indebtedness of a board of education, voted and unvote, but
exclusive of exempt debt (tax anticipatory notes) may not exceed 9% of the total value, except upon
declaration by the State Superintendent of Public Instruction that the district is 2 “special needs™ district
(which is not applicable or anticipated to be applicable to the District) in which case the 9% limitation may
be exceeded, although an such debt is subject to voter approval.

Ten-Mill Unvoted Tax Limitation: Article XII, Section 2 of the Ohio Constitution and Section 5705.02 of
the Ohio Revised Code limit the maximum aggregate millage that may be levied for all purposes on any
single parcel of property by all overlapping taxing subdivisions. The District and its largest overlapping
subdivisions currently levy the entire ten mills as follows: the District 4.19 mills; City of Oxford 3.65 mills,
Butler County 1.92 mills, Oxford Township .24 mils (Source: Butler County Auditor). The ten mills that
may be levied as ad valorem taxes upon real property without a vote of the electors are referred to as the
“inside millage”™.



Ohio law presently requires that the inside millage allocated to each overlapping taxing subdivision be used
first for the payment of debt service on unvoted general obligation debt of the subdivision, unless
provisions have been made for its payment from other sources, and that the balance be used for general
fund purposes. To the subdivision, the amount that would otherwise be available to the subdivision or its
overlapping subdivisions for general fund purposes is reduced, subject to requirements that municipal
corporations exhaust certain other revenue sources before they may cause such a millage reallocation.

Debt Currently Outstanding: The Disirict had nine voted debt issues and one unvoted (limited tax) issue
outstanding at June 30, 1999, The voted debt issues are general obligation bonds used to finance new
schools as well as additions, repairs and renovations to existing schools. The following table lists the
Diistrict’s outstanding debt represented at June 30, 1999, as compared to the two legal debt limitations.

Assessed Valuation of Lakota Local School District (199%) $1,519,076,008
Dizect Debt Limitation _ 136,716,849
Amount Available in Debt Service Fund 6,507,338
Gross indebtedness $77,923,414
Less Debt exerapt from limitation 1,520,000
Debt subject to 9% limitation 76,403,414
Legal Debt margin within 9% limitation $66,820,773
Unvoted direct Debt Limitation

(0.1% of assessed valuation) 1,519,076
Amount available in Debt Service Fund

Related to unvoted debt 0
Gross indebtedness authorized by the Board 0
Less debt exempt from the limitation 0
Debt subject to 0.1% limitation Q0
Legal debt margin within 0.1% limitation : $1,519.076
The District™s credit rating is Al.

The district also issued (limited tax) general obligation bonds to provide funding for School Bus purchases.
The principal balance at June 30, 1999 was $2,515,000.

Risk Management .
The District maintains protection for its assets and employees through a comprehensive insurance program.

Insurance policies for vehicle fleet liability, general liability, excess liability, directors, and officers,
property loss and boiler and machinery coverage are purchased from Indiana Insurance Company.
Employee health insurance is provided through the Butler county Health Plan (a cooperative trust) which
offers Mid-Valley (PPO) and Emerald Health (PP).

Cash Management -
The District’s cash management program addresses the issues of safety, liquidity, and yield while

maximizing returns. The District uses the Fifth Third Bank Liquid Asset Management as well as the Star
Ohio program investment pool operated by the Treasurer of State, Joe Deters, for ready cash and yield.
Certificates of Deposit, Obligations of the United States Treasury, banker’s acceptances, and Commercial
Paper are utilized for both short and intermediate terms. Treasury notes, treasury bills and agency notes are
utilized for longer-term investments. Investment earnings for all funds during the fiscal year were
$1,292,934. '
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Independent Audit

The State of Ohio requires an annual audit by the Auditor of State or by an independent public accounting
firm. The Auditor of State performed the audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, The auditor’s
report on the District’s general-purpose financial statements, combining and individual fund statements and
schedules, is included in the financial section of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Repaort.

Awards
The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada {(GFOA) awards a

Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to govemnments that publish a
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report whose contents are easily readable, efficiently organized, and
conform to program standards. Such reports must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and
applicable legal requirements. The District believes our current report conforms to the Certificate of
Achievement Program requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for a
certificate.

The District will also seek the Association of School Business Officials (ASBO) Certificate of Excellence
in Financial Reporting for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999. This award certifies that 2 Comprehensive
Amnual Financial Report substantially conforms to the principles and standards of financial reporting as
recormmended and adopted by the Association of School Business Officials. This award is granted only
after an extensive review of the report by an expert panel of certified public accountants and practicing
school business officials.

Acknowledgments .
The preparation of this report was made possible by the dedicated service of the staff of the Chief Financial

Officer. Special recognition is given to Plattenburg and Associates, Inc., Certified Public Accountants and
the Auditor of State.

Finally, this report would not have been possible without the leadership and support of the District’s Board
of Education, Sandy Chance, Assistant Treasurer and the support of the Lakota District Finance
Commiitee.

Sincerely,

A e

Alan R, Huichinson
Chief Financial Officer/Treasurer

Kathleen Klink
Superintendent
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250 West Court Street

STATE OF OHIO - Suite 150 E
OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

" = Telephone 513-361-8550
JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE 800-368-7419

Facsimile 513-361-8577
www.auditor.state.oh.us

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

Lakota Local School District
Butler County

5030 Tylersville Road

Waest Chester, OH 45069

To the Board of Education:

Wa have audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements of Lakota L.ocal Schoo! District,
Butler County, Ohic (the District), as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, as listed in the fable of
contents. These general-purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the District’s management.
Ourresponsibilityis to express an opinion on these general-purpose financial statements based on our audit.

Woe conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits confained in Govemment Auditing Standards, issued by the Compiroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporfing the amounts and disciosures in the financial
statements. Anauditalsoincludes assessing the accounting principles used and significantestimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the general-purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Lakota Local School District, Butler County, Ohio, as of June 30, 1999, and
the results of ifs operafions and the cash flows of its proprietary fund types for the year then ended in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 14, 2000
on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance
with ceriain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants.

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-pumose financial statements
of the District, taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund and account group financial statements
and schadules listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not
a required part of the general-purpose financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audif of the general-purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is
fairly presented, in all material respects, in relation to the general-purpose financial statements taken as a

whole.

We did not audit the data included in the introductory and stafistical sections of this report and therefore
express no opinion thereon.

Jim Petro
Auditor of State

January 14, 2000
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OIITO

Comipmed Badance Sheel

All Fund Types and Account Groups

June 30, 1999

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS:
Assets

Exquity in pooled cash and investments

Cash with fiscal agent
Restricted cash
Reccivables:
Taxes
Accounts
Intergovernmental
Interfund receivable
Inventory held for resale
Matenials 2od supplics inventory
Fixed assets (nct, where applicable,
of accnmnlated depreciation)
Cther debits

Amgunt available in Debt Service Fund
for retirement of general obligation bonds

Amount to be provided from
genenal government resources

TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER. DEBITS

LIABILITIES, ¥UND BQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS

Liabilities
Aceounts payable
Acerned wapes and benefits
Compensated absences payable
Interfund payable
Deferred reverme
Due to students
Due to others
Arcrued interest payable
Rretainage payable
Cagpital leases pryable
Bonds payable

Total Itabilitics -

Fund Bquity and other credits:
Irvestment in general fixed asscte

Contributed Capital

Regerved for encumbrances
Rescrved for set-agide

Unreserved:
Undesignated

Tota] fund equity and other credita

TOTAL LIABILITIES, FUND EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS

See accompanying notes

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
Special Debt Capital
General Revenuc Service Projscts
$10,724,655 $1,001,865 $2,731,296 81,777,787
0 0 980 0
1,267,975 0 0 0
48,651,666 0 8,103,530 o
12,643 6,805 0 0
0 40,588 0 0
279,856 0 0 0
4] 0 ] 0
¢ 0 2 0
4] 0 [ 0
g [ i) )
Q 4] 4] 0
60,936,795 1,049,258 10,833,806 1,777,787
407,982 60,643 0 3,600
8,600,007 51,377 0 0
/] 4] ] 0
0 12,351 0 246,104
41,264,921 0 4,327,488 0
[ 0 0 0
0 0 0 [
5,415 0 980 3312
g o ¢ 66,753
0 0 0 0
[ 0 0 0
50,278,325 124373 4328468 319,771
0 v} 0 4}
0 0 0 1}
0 0 0 ¢
7,386,745 0 3,776,042 o
407,536 108,172 0 696,245 °
1,267975 ¢ a 0
1,596,214 816,713 2,731,206 761,771
10,658,470 924,885 6,507,338 1,458,016
$60,936,795 $1,049.258 $10,835.806 $1,777,787
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PROPRIETARY

FIDUCIARY
FUND TYPES FUND TYFES ACCOUNT GROUPS
General General Totals
Tnternal Trust Freed Long-Tetm (Memorandum
Bnterprise Service and Agency __Assels Obligations _Only)

1,610,890 £1,054,876 $306,349 $0 $0 $19,207,718
0 4] 0 0 0 980
0 0 0 o Y 1,267,975
0 0 0 4] Y 56,755,196
1,413 0 1,966 0 0 22,827
73,870 v} 0 0 0 114,458
0 0 0 D 0 279,856
30,523 a 0 0 0 30,523
12,509 0 ] - 0 0 12,509
871,370 0 0 116,329,440 0 117,200,810
0 0 0 0 6,507,338 6,507,338
0 0 0 0 75,885,880 75,885,880
2,600,575 1,054,876 308,315 116,329,440 86,393,218 281,286,070
144,132 2,116 11,956 [ [ 637,431
196,527 o @ ¢ 671,015 9,518,926
116,535 0 0 0 6,835,198 6,951,733
a 0 21,401 0 Q 279,856
19,610 0 0 0 0 45,612,019
0 o] 147,445 Q 0 147,445
0 0 69,247 0 0 69,247
0 0 0 0 [ 9,707
0 0 0 0 ] 66,755
0 0 0 0 963,591 963,591
0 0 0 4} 71,923,414 77,923,414
476,804 9116 250,049 [} 86,363 218 142,180,124
0 0 0 116,329,440 0 116,329,440
1,295,844 ¢ a i} 1} 1,285,844
827,927 1,045,760 0 0 0 1,873,687
0 0 0 0 0 11,162,787
0 0 1,599 0 0 1,213,552
0 0 0 4] 0 1,267,975
4 , 0 56,667 0 0 5,962,661
2,123,771 1,045,760 38,265 _ 116,329,440 0 139,105 945
$2.600,575 $1.054,876 $308,315 $116,320,440 $86,393,218 $281,286,070
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOQOL DISTRICT, QHTO
Lorsfoped Stateraent of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balances

All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Fund
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
i ——
Special alc Cupital
Grenexal Reverme Service Projects
Revemes:
Taxes 342,983,507 $0 $3.434,113 $0
Intergnvernmental 26,252,76¢ 1,339,411 385,557 ]
Investment revenue 1,264 33% 2,108 0 9
Tuition wnd feer 381,159 0 0 a
EBxtracumicular activities 129,675 889,978 o Y
Gifts and donaticne 34,278 114,265 4] [}
Other revermes A§1,168 12352 11,716 "]
Total revemttes T3 837917 5 468 124 9335 388 0
Bxponditures:
Carrent:
Instroction:
Regnlsr 33,516,073 122, 488 o 685,504
Spacial 5,254,508 184,658 [ 72,343
Voestionsl 146312 277 L] 0
Oftier 111,550 [} 0 0
Support pervices:
Popil 4,033,907 #1237 0 0
Instractional Staff 3,733,143 150,082 o 28,128
Board of Education 32,985 [} 3 L
Administration 6,094,554 200 o 0
Fiscal 1,304,300 (] 107,945 0
Buginess 254,303 g [ 2
Operations and maintenance 7,640,848 0 9 36,010
Papil Trenaportation 5,398,641 4,510 0 0
Cantleal 631574 58,642 0 0
Operation of non-nstrodtional
secvices 2,065 800 0 0
Betmrumienlar activities 1,310,626 578,412 Q 1]
Capital cutlsy 104,955 0 0 480
Dbt Service:
Pringpal retirement 312399 o 4,000,000 1
Intocest and Fxcal charges 48,048 ¢ 4,249,185 30993
Total Expenditures 73,947,679 2 47,513 B357,130 73,458
Boerem of revernes over
(ender) expenditures (1,709.762) 430311 ___ 918256 _(783,458)
Othar financing sources (ses):
Procoeds of sale of fixed nrsoty 5,061 L] L] a
Proceeds of capitel leascs $00,000 a o ]
Proceeds of bonds 0 L] L] 1,515,000
Premitm on bonds sold 0 0 0 2,840
ing transfers in 187,120 118,347 1,393,600 1,206,271
Opaguting transfecs {ouf} (H16,47) 0 1,393,451} (995,000)
Tota! other financing rources (uses) 375294 112347 149 2,798,111
Excees of tevamos and ather
financing sources over (undery
ependitorer and other
Enancing uses (1,134,468) 538,558 978,405 1,945,653
Fund belance, July § 11,918,191 386277 3,528,933 (427.637)
(Decreass} in reserve for inventory {125,25%) [ & [
Fend balence, fune 30 Slﬂlﬁssnﬂ’ﬂ 3924,5315_ ) $6 307 A3 SI!JS&DIG
Tar wecompanying notes
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FIDUCIARY

FUND TYPE
Totals
Expendable (Memorandum
Trust Only)
32 151,417,650
1] 30,481,732
12 1,267,056
] J8LIX9
1] 1,019,653
9,127 257,670
1] 536246
9,749 25,351,176
0 39,404,247
0 5,461,505
0 247450
[+] 11L3%Q
& 4,593,144
4,456 3,916 466
0 32,988
0 6,084,754
[ 1,412,745
0 254303
0 7,676,558
o 5,408,151
0 750,218
1] 8,665
9,250 1,899,288
0 105,433
g 439G
L] 4348224
13,708 85,449, 886
BN {1,098,718)
L 5,061
0 $00,000
0 2,515,000
0 840
4 7,903,398
0 (3,905,358)
4 3arigor_
Q3957 324,191
Qs 17,408,037
o (125,25%)
SR | YT T8 508,57%

19



LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
And Clanges in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual (Non-GA AP Budpetary Basis)
All Governmental Fund Types

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

General Special Revenue
T Variance: T Varance:
Revised Favorable Revised Favorable
Revenues: Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Taxes $43,059,900 $43,941,088 $5881,188 50 so $0
Intergovermmental 26,571,300 28,672,708 2,101,408 1,534,663 1,344,524 {190,139)
Interest 1,277,900 1,259,038 (18,862) o o o
Tuition & fees 456,190 381,972 (74,218) G 0 )
Extracurricular activities 124,500 129,675 5,175 782,040 794,856 12,816
Other revenues 485,000 434,922 {78 145,050 154,555 9,505
Total revenues 71,074,790 74,3@,353 T3 281,153 pRLEREL] (167,81 §j
Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Reguler 37,852,195 37,852,195 ¢ 352,026 129,816 222210
Special 5,082,840 5,082,240 0 232,911 228,228 4,683
Vocational 251,598 251,598 0 3,000 877 2,123
Other 126,186 126,186 0 1] 4] 0
Support services
Pupil 4,006,423 4,006,423 0 1,160,721 1,006,933 153,788
Ingtructional staff 3,748,879 3,748,879 0 275855 183 476 92,379
Board of Education 33,151 33,161 o 1} 0 o
Administration 6,113,078 6,113,078 ) To0 200 500
Fiseal 1,306,156 1,306,156 0 0 0 0
Business 252,854 252,894 [} 0 0 Q
Opetation and maintenance 7,529,808 7,529,808 [} 100 0 100
Pupil transportation 5,218,149 5,218,149 o 25,072 9,078 15,594
Central 700,812 F00,812 4] 64,718 59,309 5,409
Operation of Non-Instrectional services 8,008 3,008 0 4,002 550 3,452
Extracurrcular sctivities 1,283,519 1,283,519 1] 646,679 646,679 Q
Capital outlzy 219,637 219,637 0 0 o 0
Debt Service:
Principal retirement 0 [ o ] [ 0
Interest and fiscal charges 0 0 Q 0 0 0
Total expenditures 73,733,343 73,733,343 ] PRt 65,148 30,658
Excess of revenues over {under)
expenditures (1,758,553) 1136060 2,894,613 (304,031) 28,789 332,820
Other financing sources (uses): o
Proceeds of bonds 0 0 0 [y [+] 0
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 4,600 27,662 23,062 [} 4] 0
Refind of priot year expenditures 8,400 14,108 5,708 200 3,231 3,031
Refimd of prior year receipts (169,123) (169,123) 0 G,137) 6,137 0
Operating transfers in ] 0 1] 118,000 118,347 347
Openating transfers (out) (516,947) (516,947) 0 0 0 0
Advances in 4,860 0 {4,800) 0 12,351 12,351
Advances (out) 279,855} (279,355) o 0 o 0
Other financing sounces o] [+] [} 19,420 [} (19,420)
Gther financing (uses) (673,991) o 673,99 (141,371) o 141,371
“Total ofher financing sources (uses) S 5§ O N 7 ) N - A) SN %L D i SR & . I
Excess of revenucs and other
financing sources over {under)
expenditures and other financing uses (3,380,669) 211,905 3,502,574 (310,919) 159,581 470,500
Fund balance, Tuly £ (Includes prior 10,889,361 10,889,361 [+ 551,411 551411 0
year encumbrances appropriated)
Fund balance, June 30 $7,508,692 311,101,266 $3,592,574 $240,492 $710,992 $470,500
See accompanying notes
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Debt Service Capital Projects
Variance: T Vanance:
Revised Favorable Revised Favomable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actial __ (Unfavorable)
$15,907,787 $7,999,856  ($7,907,931} $0 50 $0
896,700 939,857 43,167 o] [+ 4]
0 0 0 0 o 4]
0 0 0 0 o 4]
0 0 0 0 0 Q
0 0 o 1} /] /]
15,8044 959, 864, o T T %
o 0 0 1,218,296 1,102,018 116,278
L] 0 (4] 27,898 27,898 [}
0 0 0 0 0 0
¢ i) ¢ L g L
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 134,588 58,636 75,952
4] 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 4] 0 0 0
4] 0 ¢ 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
o] 4 0 36,010 35,010 4
o G o 639240 £39,240 o
0 0 a 9,029 9,029 a
0 ] 0 ] 0 0
4] 0 4] 0 0 ]
o 0 Q 358,572 358,572 o
5,452,328 5,452,328 ] L] Q 0
4418927 4,298,253 120,674 o 0 o
9,871,255 9,750,581 120,074 383,653 331,405 155,050
6,933,232 (810,358)  (7,744,090) (2,423,633)  (2,231,403) 192,230
995,000 995,000 0 1,522,840 1,522,840 0
[} 0 0 0 Q0 0
3] 0 0 o Q Q
0 0 0 0
398,600 398,600 ° 120,000 o (120,000)
o 0 L) [ 0 0
0 0 0 247,000 245,104 (3965)
0 [} 0 0 Qo Qo
0 o] 0 a 0 0
1] 11,716 11,716 (66,139) (14) 66,125
1,393,600 1,405,318 11,716 23, 168, 3
2,326,832 594458 (T,732,374) (599,932) (462,473) 137,459
2,136,837 2,136,837 0 1,543,042 1,543,042 ¢
$10,463,669  $2,731,295  {§7,732,374) $543,110 $1,080,569 $137,459
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses

And Changes in Retained Eamnings

All Proprietary Fund Types

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

[

Operating Revenues:

Tuition and fees

Sales

Charges for Services
Other revenucs
Exfracutricular revenues

Total operating revenues
Operating Expenscs:
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Purchased Services
Materialy and supplies
Depreciation
Other operating cxpenses

Total operating cxpenses

Operating income (loss)

Non-operating revenues:
Federal donsted commodities

Operating grants
Investment revenue

Total non-operating revenues

Net Income (loss)
Retzined Eamings, July 1

Retained Earnings, June 30

Sec accompanying notes

PROPRIETARY
FUND TYPES
Totals
Internal (Memorandum
Enterprise Service Only)
50 $92,933 $52,933
3,121,571 o 3,121,571
0 1,788,802 1,788,802
73 0 73
o 40,804 40,804
3,121,644 1,922,539 5,044,183
1,008,054 0 1,008,054
330,073 0 330,073
76,097 ¢ 76,097
1,916,443 702 1,917,145
153,759 0 153,759
8,770 2,021,857 2,030,627
3,493,196 2,022,559 5,515.755
(371,552) (100,020) (471,572)
177,022 0 177,022
295,203 0 295,203
25,868 0 25,868
458,093 0 498,093
126,541 (100,020) 26,521
701,386 1,145,780 1,847,166
$827.927 $1,045,760 $1,873,687
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Cambioad. Statement OF Cash Flows

All Proprietary Fund Types

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from tuition and fees
Cash received from charges for services
Cash received from sales
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services
Cash payments for materials and supplies
Cash payments for other operating expenses
Net cash provided by (used for) operating acitivities

Cash flows from noncapital financing
activities:

Operating grants received
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Acquisition of capital assets

Net cash used for capital and related
financing activities

- Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest on investments

Net cash provided by investing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, July I

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30

PROPRIETARY
FUND TYPES

Totals
Internal (Memorandum

Enterprise Service Only)
s0 $133,737 133,737
573,396 1,788,802 2,362,198
§2,546,834 50 $2,546,834
(77,084) 0 (77,084}
(1,286,879) 0 (1,286,879)
(1,604,583) 0 {1,604,583)
0 (2,013,443) (2,013,443)
151,684 (90,904) 60,780
258,179 0 258,179
258,179 0 258,179
(54,895) 0 (54,895)
(54,895) C {54,895)
25,868 0 25,868
25,868 0 25,868
380,836 (50,9043 289,932
1,230,054 1,145,780 2,375,834
_ 1,610,850 1,054,876 2,665,766
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Combined Statement Of Cash Flows

All Proprietary Fund Types

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

PROPRIETARY
FUND TYPES
Totals
Internal (Memorandum
Enterprise Service Only)
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Operating income (loss) {371,552) {100,020) (471,572)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation 153,759 0 153,759
Donated commodities used 177,022 0 177,022
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (1,413) 0 (1.413)
(Increase) decrease in inventory held for resale 7,507 0 7.507
(Increase) decrease in materials and
supplies inventory 26,242 o 26,242
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 127,291 9,116 136,407
Increase (decrease) in accrued wages and benefits 41,877 a 41,871
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 9,371 0 9,371
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue (18,420} 0 {18,420)
Total Adjustments 523,236 9,116 532,352
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities $151,684 (390,904) 860,780
See accompanying notes
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Lakota Local School District, Ohio
Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 1999

Note 1. Descriptibn of the District

The District was chartered in 1957 by the Ohio State Legislature. The original District was a consolidation of
the Liberty Township District and the Union Township District into the Liberty-Union School District. The name
of the District was changed to the Lakota Local School District in 1970. Today, the School District operates
under current standards prescribed by the Ohio State Board of Education as provided in Division D § 3301.07
and §119.01 of the Ohio Revised Code. _

The District operates under a locally elected five-member board form of government and provides educational
services as authorized by its charter or further mandated by state and/or federal agencies. This board
controls the District's twenty instructional and support facilities staffed by 596 non-certificated personnel and
980 certificated teaching and administrative personnel to provide services to 14,139 students.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the District have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) as applied fo governmenta! units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and firancial reporting
principles. The District also applies Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) statements interpretations
issued on or before November 30, 1989, to its proprietary activities provided they do not conflict with or
confradict GASB pronouncements. The District's significant accounting policies are described below.

A. The Reporting Entity

For financial reporiing purposes, the District's financial statements inciude all funds and account
groups of the primary government for which the District is finahcially accountable based on the criteria
of financial accountability sef forth in GASB Statement 14. The primary government consists of all
funds, departments, boards, and agencles that are not legally separate from the District. Potential
component units were considered for inclusion in the District's financial statements. Generally,
component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the District are
financially accountable. The District would consider an organization to be a component unit if:

1. The District appoints a voting majority of the organization's gaverning bady and (a) is able
to impose its will on that organization or (b) there is a potential for the organization to provide
specific financial burdens on the District; or

2. The organization Is fiscally dependent upon the District; or

3. The nature of the reiationship between the District and the organization is such that the
exclusion from the financial reporting entity would render the financial statements of the

Disirict misieading.

The Disfrict inciuded no component units in the financial statements. However, the District is
associated with the Southwestern Ohio Computer Association, a jointly governed organization. This
organization is presented in Note 19 of the general-purpose financial statements.

B. Basis of Presentation

The accounts of the Disfrict are maintained on the basis of fund and account groups, each of which is
considered a separate accounting entity. The operation of each fund is accounted for within a
separafe set of seff-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and
expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. The following fund types and account groups are used by

the District:
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Lakota Local School District, Ohio
Motese to the General Purpose Financial Statements {(continued)

o Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of the District are
financed. The acquisition, use, and balances of the District's expendable financial resources
and the related liabilities (except for those accounted for in proprietary funds) are accounted
for through governmental funds. The following are the District's governmental fund types:

General Fund

The general fund Is the general operating fund of the District and is used to account
for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources (other than major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures
for specified purposes.

Debt Service Fund

The debt service fund is used to account for the accumutation of resources for, and
the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs as well as
for the payment of interest on general obligation notes payable, as required by Ohio
law.

Capital Project Funds

Capital project funds are used to account for financial resources to be used far the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by

proprietary funds).
Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are used to account for the District's on going activities that are similar to
those most often found in the private sector. The following are the District's proprietary fund

fypes: _
Enterprise Funds

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations a) that are financed and operated
in & manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the govemning
body is that the cost (expenses, including deprectation) of providing goods or
services to the general public on & continuing basis be financed or recovered
primarily through user charges, or b} where the governing body has decided that
periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, andfor net income is
appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control,
accountabillity, or other purposes.

internat Service Funds
Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services

provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the
District, or fo other governments, on a cost reimbursement basis.
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Lakota Local School District, Ohio
Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements (continued)

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for the assets held by the District in a trustee capacity or
as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other
funds. These include expendable trust and agency funds. Expendable trust funds are
accounted for in essentially the same manner as governmental funds. Agency funds are
custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of

operations.
Account Groups

To make a clear distinction between fixed assets related to specific funds and those of
general government, and between long-term liabilities related to specific funds and those of a
general nature, the following account groups are used:

General Fixed Assets Account Group

This group of accounts is established to account for all fixed assets of the District
other than those accounted for in proprietary funds and trust funds.

General Long-Term Obligations Account Group

This group of accounts is established to account for all long-term obligations of the
District except those accounted for in proprietary funds and trust funds.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Measurement Focus: Governmental funds and expendable trust funds are accounted for on a
spending or "current financial resources™ measurement focus. Govermnmental operating statements
represent the increases and decreases in net current asseis. Their reported fund balances are
considered a measure of available resources fo spend.

Proprietary funds are accounted for on a cost of services or "economic resources” measurement
focus. Proprietary fund income statements represent increases and decreases in net total assets.

Basis of Accounting: The modified accrual basis of accounting is followed for governmental funds,
expendable trust and agency funds. Under this basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when
they become both measurable and available to finance expenditures for the current period, which for
the District is 60 days after fiscal year-end. Revenue accrued at the end of the fiscal year included
delinquent property taxes, property taxes available for advance, interest, tuition, state and federal
grants. Properly taxes, measurable and available to the District at June 30, 1999, for advances and
delinquent property taxes are recorded as cument revenue. Property texes receivable that are
intended to finance fiscal year 2000 operations, have been recorded as deferred revenues.
Expenditures are recognized in the period in which the related fund liability is incurred except for
interest on long-term debt which is recorded when due.

Proprietary funds are accounted for on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized in
the period eamed, and expenses are recognized in the period incurred.



L.akota Local School District, Ohio
Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements (continued)

D. Budgetary Data

Budgetary Basis of Accounfing: The District's budgetary process accounts for certain transactions on
a basis ather than GAAP. The magjor difference betweén the budgetary basis and the GAAP basis

are;

Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budgetary) as opposed to when susceptible
to accrual (GAAPR).

Expenditures are recorded when encumbered or paid in cash (budgetary), as opposed io
when susceptible to accrual (GAAP).

The actual results of operations, compared to the final appropriation, which includes amendments to
the original appropriation, for each fund type by expenditure function and revenue by source are
presented in the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budgst-Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis). The reserve for encumbrances is carried forward as
part of the budgetary authority for the next year and is inciGded in the revised budget amounts shown
in the budget to actual camparison.

The District adopts an annua! budget for all fund types. The specific timetable is as follows:

Prior to January 15 of the preceding fiscal year, the Treasurer submits {o the Board of
Education a proposed coperating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1.
The budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing for all funds. A
public hearing is conducted {o obtain taxpayers' comments. The purpose of this budget
document is to reflect the need for existing (or increased) tax rates.

By no later than January 20, the board-adopted budget is filed with the Butler County Budget
Commission for tax rate determination.

Prior o Aprii 1, the Board of Educafion accepfs by formal resolution fthe fax rates as
determined by the Budget Commission and receives the commission’s Certificate of
Estimated Resources, which states the projected revenue of eagh fund. Prior to June 30, the
District must revise its budget so that total contemplated expenditures from any fund during
the ensuing year will not exceed the amount stated in the Certificate of Estimated Resources.
The revised budget then serves as a basis for the appropriation measure,

On or about July 1, the certificate is amended to include any unencumbered balances from
the preceding year as reported by the District Treasurer. The cerfificate may be further
amended during the year if projected increases or decreases in revenue are identified by the
District Treasurer. The amounts reported in the budgetary statement reflect the amounis set
forth in the final amended certificate.

By July 1, the annual appropriation resolution is legally enacted by the Board of Education at
the fund, function, and object level of expenditures, which are the legal levels of budgetary
control. (State statute permits a temporary appropriation fo be effective until no fater than
October 1 of each year.) Resolution appropriations by fund must be within the estimated
resources as certified by the Budget Commission, and the total of expenditures and
encumbrances may not exceed the appropriation totals.

Any revisions that alter either the total of any fund appropriation or the totai function

appropriations within a fund or object appropriations within functions must be approved by the
Board of Education.
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Lakota Local School District, Ohio
Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements {continued)

Appropriation amounts are as originally adopted or amended by the Board of Education
through the year by supplemental appropriations which either reallocated or increased the
original appropriated amounts. All supplemental appropriations were legaily enacted by the
board during fiscal 1998-89.

Unencumbered appropriations lapse at year-end. Encumbered appropriations are carried
forward to the succeeding fiscal year and need not be reappropriated. Expenditures plus
encumbrances may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund, function, and/or
object level.

The orlginal appropriation measure was amended during the year as follows:

Fund Type
Governmental:
General Fund $ (1,750,486)
Special Revenue 609,093
Capital Projects 457,961

E. Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting is utilized by District funds in the normal course of operations for purchase
orders and coniract related expenditures. An encumbrance is a reserve on the available spending
authority due to a commitment for a future expenditure and does not represent a liability. In order fo
demonstrate legal compliance for governmental fund types, encumbrances outstanding at fiscal year-
end appear as a reserve of the fund balance on a GAAP basis. Encumbrances outstanding at fiscal
year-end for all funds appear as the equivalent of expenditures or expenses on a non-GAAP
budgetary basis.

F. Cash and Investments

Cash received by the District is deposited in one bank account with individual fund balance integrity
maintained throughout. Moneys for all funds are maintained in this account or are temporarily used to
purchase short-term cash equivalent investments (maturity date within three months of the date
acquired). Under existing Ohio statute, all eamings accrue to the general fund except those
specifically related to the food service fund or certain frust funds and also to those funds individually
authorized by board resolution. Except for investment contracts and money market investments that
had a remaining maturity of one year or lass at the time of purchase, investments are reported at fair
value which is based on quoted market prices. Investment contracts and money market investments
that had a remaining maturity of one year or less at the time of purchase are reported at cost or
amortized cost. Investment earnings are allocated to these funds based on the actual eamings of the
investment. Investment income eamed in fiscal 1999 totaled $1,292,934.

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows (GASB Statement 9) the proprietary fund portion of
cash and investments is considered to be liquid because their portion of the cash and investment pool
can be accessed without prior notice or penalty.

An analysis of the Treasurer's investment account at year-end, June 30, 1999, is provided in Note 4.
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Lakota Local School District, Chio
Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements (continued)

G. Inventory

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market value, using the first inffirst out (FIFO) method
and are determined by physical count. The costs of governmental fund-type inventories are recorded
as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased. “The proprietary fund inventories are
expensed when used rather than when purchased.

H. Fixed Assets

General Fixed Assets Account Group - General fixed assets are capitalized at cost (or
estimated historical cost) and updated for the cost of additions and retirements during the
year in the general fixed assets account group. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their
fair market values as of the date donated. The District follows the policy of not capitalizing
assets with a cost of less than $200. Construction interest costs are not capitaiized. No
depreciation is recognized for assets in the general fixed assets account group. The District
does not possess any infrastructure.

Proprietary Funds - Vehicles, property, plant, and equipment reflected in the proprietary
funds are stated at historical cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for the cost of
additions and retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair
market values as of the date donated. Depreciation has been provided, where appropriate,
on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Asset Life {years)

Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 51020
Vehicles 6

I. Intergovernmental Revenues

In governmental funds, entitlements (to the extent they are intended to finance items in the current
fiscal year) and non-reimbursable grants are recorded as a receivable and a revenue when they are
measurable and available. Reimbursement type grants are recorded as a receivable and revenues
when the related expenditures are incurred. Grants for proprietary fund operations are recognized as
revenue when measurable and earned.
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Lakota Local School District, Ohio

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements (continued)

J. Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are recorded as compensated absences payable on the financial
statements. The criteria for determining vested vacation and sick leave componentis are derived from
negotiating agreements and state laws. In summary, the components of vesting are as follows:

Vacation

How earned

Maximum
accumulation

Vested

Termination
entitlement

Sick Leave

How earned

Maximum
accumulation

Vested

Termination
entitlement

Certificated

not eligible

not applicable

not applicable
not applicable
1-1/4 days per
month of

employment (15
days per year

220 days

as eamed

per contract

20-23 days

30 days unless
special permission
granted

as earned

30 days maximum
1-1/4 days per
month of

employment (15
days per year

230 days

as eamed

per contract

Non-Certificated

10-20 days for each
service year depending
on length of service

30-60 days

as earned

paid upon termination

1-1/4 days per

month of

employment (15
days per year

220 days

as earned

per contract

For governmental funds, accumulated vacation and sick leave that is expected to be liquidated with
expendable available financlal resources is reported as an expenditure and a fund liability of its

respective governmental fund.

Amounts of accumulated vacation and sick leave that are not

expected to be liguidated with expendable available financlal resources are reported in the general
long-term obligations account group. Accumulated vacation and sick leave of proprietary funds is
recorded as an expense and liability of those funds as the benefits accrue to the employee.
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Lakota Local School District, Ohio
Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements (continued)

In accordance with GASB Statement 16, a liability should be accrued for earned and unpaid vacation
and sick leave &t the salary rate in effect at the balance sheet date if both of these conditions are met:

1.The employees' rights to receive compensation are attributable to services already
rendered.

2. ltis probable that the employer will compensate the employees for benefits through paid
time off or some other means such as cash payments at termination or retirement.

Salary related payments are not applicable to the District.

K. Long-Term Obligations

" Long-term debt is recognized as a liability of a govermnmental fund when due or when resources have
been accumulated in the debt service fund for payment early in the following year. For other long--
term obligations, only that portion expected to be financed from expendable available resources is
reported as a fund liability of a governmental fund. The remaining portion of such obligations is
reported in the general long-term obligations account group. Long-term liabilities expected to be
financed from proprietary fund operations are accounted for in those funds.

L. Fund Balance Reserves

The District records reservations for portions of fund equity which are legally segregated for specific
future use or which do not represent available spendable resources and therefare are not available for
appropriations for expenditures, Unreserved fund balance indicates that portion of fund equity which is
available for appropriation in future periods. Fund equity reserves are established for encumbrances,
property taxes (recognized as revenue but not available for appropriation under Ohio law) and
budgetary set-asides required under Ohlo Law.

M. Interfund Transactions

During the course of normal operations the District has numerous transactions between funds. The
most significant include:

Routine transfers of resourcas from one fund to another fund through which resources to
be expended are recorded as operating transfers. ’

Reimbursements from one fund to another fund are treated as expenditures or expenses
in the reimbursing fund and as a reduction in expenditures or expenses in the reimbursed

fund.
N. Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reporied in the
financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

0. Memorandum Only Total Columns

Total columns on the general-purpose financial staterments are captioned (Memorandum Only) to
indicate that they are presented only fo facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do not
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Lakota Local School District, Ohio
Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements {continued)

present financial position, results of operations, or changes in financial position in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles. This data is not comparable to a consolidation. Interfund
eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of these data.

P. Proprietary Fund Accounting

In accordance with GASEB Statement No. 20, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary
Funds and Other Governmental Entities that Use Proptietary Fund Accounting,” the District applies
all GASB pronouncements and all FASB Statements and Inferpretations, Accounting Principles Board
Opinions, and Accounting Research Bullefing issued on or before November 30, 1989, uniess they
conflict with GASB pronouncements.

Note 3. Fund Balance Deficits

Fund balances at June 30, 1999, inciuded the following individual fund deficits (includes accrual entries):
Fund Deaficit
Buitding - Capital Projects $ 268,563

This deficit is a result of construction cost overruns and will be eliminated through fiscal 2000 operations.

Note 4. Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments

The District maintains a cash and investment pool used by ail funds. Each fund type's portion of this pool is
displayed on the combined balance sheet as "Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments.”

Protection of the schoal District's deposits is provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, by
eligible securities pledged by the financial insfitufion as security for repayment, by surety company bonds
deposited with the Treasurer by the financial institution, or by a single collateral pool established by the
financial institution fo secure the repayment of all public moneys deposited with the institution.

State legisfation permits interim moneys to be deposited or invested in the following securities:

a. United States treasury notes, bills, bonds, or any other obligation or security issued by the
United States treasury or any other obligation guaranteed as to principal and interest by the
United States; ’

b. Bonds, notes, debentures, or any other obligations or securities issued by any federal
governmental agency or instrumentality, including but not limited to, the Federal National
Mortgage Association, Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal Farm Credit Bank, Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation, Government National Mortgage Association, and Student Loan Marketing
Association. All federal agency securities shall be direct issuances of federal government
agencies or instrumentality’s;

¢. Written repurchase agreements in the securities listed above provided that the market value of
the securities subject to the repurchase agreement must exceed the principal value of the

agreement by at least two percent and be marked to market daily, and that the term of the
agreement must not exceed thirty days;

d. Bonds and other obligations of the State of Ohio;
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Lakota Local School District, Ohio
Notes fo the General Purposa Financial Statements (continued)

e. No-load money market mutual funds consisting exclusively of cbligations described in division
a or b of this section and repurchase agreements secured by such obligations, provided that
investments in securities described in this division are made only through eligible institutions;

f. The State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STAR Ohio) investment pool;

g. Certain bankers’ acceptances and commercial paper notes for a period not to exceed one hundred
eighty days in an amount not {o exceed twenty-five percent of the interim moneys available for

investment at any one time; and,

h. Under limited circumstances, corporate debt interests rated in either of the lwo highest rating
classifications by at least two nationally recognized rating agencies.

Investments in stripped principal or interest obligations, reverse repurchase agreements, and derivatives are
prohibited. The issuance of taxable notes for the purpose of arbitrage, the use of leverage and short selling
are also prohibited. An investment must mature within five years from the date of purchase unless matched to
a specific obligation or debt of the school District and must be purchased with the expectation that it will be
held to maturity. Investmenis may only be made through specified dealers and insfitutions. Payment for
investments may be made only upon delivery of the securities representing the investments to the treasurer
or, if the securities are not represented by a certificate, upon receipt of confirmation of transfer from the

custodian.

Deposits. At fiscal year-end the unobligated or camying amount of the District's demand deposits
(which Includes cash with fiscal and escrow agenis) was $891,664 and the bank balance was
$1,246,814. It should be noted that an additional $590,808 was held in nominal depository accounts
that are swept each night into investments in overnight repurchase agreements. Of the bank balance,
$266,755 was covered by federal depository insurance, and $980,058 was uninsured and
uncollateralized. Although the securities serving as collateral were held by the pledging financial
institution’s trust department in the Disfrict's name and all state statutory requirements for the deposit
of money had been followed, non-compliance with federal requirements would potentially subject the
District to a successful claim by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

Investments. The District's investments are categorized to give an indication of the level of risk
assumed by the entity at year-end. Category 1 includes invesiments that are issued or registered or
for which the securities are held by the District or its agent in the District's name. Category 2 includes
uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the broket or dealsr or by
its trust department or agent in the District's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered
investments for which the securities are held by the broker or dealer or by its trust department or
agent, but not in the District's name.

e

Considermg the above criteria, the District's deposits and investments at June 30, 1999, are classified
as follows:
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Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements (continued)

Category Carrying Fair
Unclassified 3 Vaiue Value
Repurchase i
agreemants H - $ 3,629,904 § 3,620,904 $ 3,629,904
U.S. Treasury L B }
Notes 2,486,787 2,436,797 2,741,255
Money Market
Mutual Fund (1) 2,481,608 2,481,899 2,481,689
FHLB - 10,286,609 10,986,608 10,802,975
Totals $ 2,481,600 $ 17,103,310 § 19,585,009 § 19,755,833

1) The District's investment in the money market mutual fund is not categorized because it is not
evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book form.

Restricted Pooled Cash and Investments. Restricted pooled cash and investments in the general
fund represents cash set aside to establish a budget stabilization reserve. This reserve is required by
state statute and can be used only afier receiving approval from the State Superintendent of Public

Instruction.

Note 5. Property Taxes

Properly taxes include amounts levied against real, public ufility, and tangible personal {(business) property.
The assessed values, by property classification, upon which taxes collected in 1998 were based are as

follows:

Tangible personal $ 136,671,688
Public utilities and real estate 1,382,404,410
Total assessed property value  ~% ~ 1,519,076,098

Property taxes collected in 1999 were levied in April, 1998 on the assessed values as of Jahuary 1, 1998, the
lien date. Assessed values are established by the County Auditor at 35% of appraised market value. A
revaluation of real property is required to be completed no less than every six years, with a statistical update
every third year. The most recent revaluation was completed in January 1997.

Tangible personal properly tax is assessed on equipment and inventory held by businesses. Tangible
properly is assessed at 27% of true value (as defined). In 1999, each business was eligible to receive a
$10,000 exemption in assessed value that was reimbursed by the state.

Real property taxes are payable annually or semiannually. If paid annually, payment was due on the second

Thursday in February. If paid semiannually, the first payment (at least 1/2 of the amount billed) was due on
the second Thursday in February, with the remainder due on the second Thursday in July.
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The County Auditor remits portions of the taxes collected fo all taxing Districts with periodic settlements of real
and public utility property taxes in February and August and tangible personal property taxes in June and
Qctober. TheDistrict records billed, but uncollected, property taxes as a receivable at their estimated net

realizable value.

Accrued property taxes receivable represent outstanding delinquent taxes, and real property, personal
property, and public ulility taxes which are measurable at June 30, 1899. Property taxes avallable for
advance at June 30 are included as a receivable and tax revenue as of June 30, 1998. All other property tax
receivables are recorded with an offset credit to deferred revenue because, although measurable, they are
intended o finance the next fiscal year's operations.

Note 6. Receivables

Receivables at June 30, 1999, consisted of taxes, accounts receivable, intergovernmental grants, and
entilements. All receivables are considered collectible in full due to the ability to foreclose for the nonpayment
of taxes, the stable condition of state programs, and the current year guarantee of federal funds.

A summary of the principal items of receivables follows:

- Type of
Eund Receivable Amount
General Taxes $ 48,651,666
Special Revenue Intergovernmental 40,588
Debt Service Taxes 8,103,530
Enterprise intergovernmental 73,870

Note 7. Fixed Assets

The following is a summary of the changes in the general fixed assets account group during the fiscal
year:

July 1.1998  Addiions  Delefions  Adjustments June 30, 1969

iz

Land and improvements $ 3528127 § 6130500 § - $ 3,314,464 § 12,973,091
Buildings and bldg. Improve. 47,704,638 39,478,875 - (3,314,464) 83,869,049
Fumiture and equipment 13,015,377 419,826 - - 13,435,203
Vehicles 5,836,097 216,000 - - 6,052,097
Construction in progress 45,986,352 - 45,086,352 - -
Totals $ 116,070,591 § 46,245,201 § 45986,352 § - $ 116,320,440

The adjustment column represents the correction of an incorrect classification in the prior year.

The following is a summary of proprietary fund fixed assets at June 30, 1999:
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Furniture and equipment $§ 2,111,405
Vehicles, , 23,601
Less: accumulated depreciation (1,263,636)

ik orfl1,370

Note 8. Capitalized Leases

During 1999, the District entered into a new lease for computer equipment with a present value of $900,000.
The District had other lease agreements at the beginning of fiscal 99.The terms of each lease agreement
provide options to purchase the equipment. Each lease meets the criteria of a capital lease as defined by
Statement of Financlal Accounting Standards No. 13, Accounting for Leases, which defines a capital lease
generally as one which transfers benefits and risks of ownership to the lessee at the conclusion of the lease
term. Capital lease payments have been reclassified and are reflecfed as debt service in the combined
financial statements for the governmental funds. Principal payments of $322,393 were made during the fiscal

year.

The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments required under these capital leases and the
present value of the net minimum lease payments at June 30, 1939:

June 2000 460,133
June 2001 459,863
June 2002 . . 110,421
June 2003 o 2,437
Total minimum lease payments 1,032,854
Less: amounis representing Inferest 69,263

Present value of future minimum lease payments ™ § 963,591
L —

Note 9. Long-Term Pebt

General Obligation Bonds. The District issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition
and construction of equipment and facilities. General obligation bonds are District obligations that pledge the
full faith and credit of the school District. Accordingly, such unmatured obligations of the school District are
accounted for in the general long-term obligation account group. Payments of principal and interest relating to
these liabilities are recorded as expenditures in the debt service fund.

The following Is a description of the District's outstanding bonds as of June 30, 1999:
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Amount
Interest Issue Maturity Original Outstanding Retired Balance

Purpose Rate Date Date Amount July 1 1999 June 30
Freedom, Link Renovations - 8.125% 38T T 1108 2,725,000 1,500,000 . 126,000 1,375,000
Woodland, Shawnee Jr. High 7.848% 81188 121111 10,122,000 440,000 440,000 -
Renovations
Ninth Grade Building 7.315% 12/1/89 121112 5,000,000 440,000 220,000 220,000
Heritage Additions and Renovatlons 7.118% 711790 121712 7,500,000 1,360,000 340,000 1,020,000
Two New Elementaries Renovations 5.671% 1211192 121115 9,800,000 6,350,000 710,000 5,640,000
Freedom, New Elementaries 5.870% 2/1/93 121115 8,950,000 7,020,000 390,000 6,630,000
Renovations
Refunding Woodland, Shawnee 5.752% 31193 1211712 6,786,622 5,771,622 210,000 5,561,622
Refunding Ninth Grade Heritage 6.248% 111/94 121112 6,535,957 5,870,957 165,000 . 5,705,957
Two Neu:r Fiigh Schools 8.211% 5M1/94 12117 51,860,000 31,480,000 1,350,000 _3(_),130.000_
Refunding New High Schools 5.242% 6/1/68 12117 19,175,835 19,175,835 50,000 19,125,835
Varlpus Purpose Long-Term Bonds 4.518% 6/1/99 6/1/05 2,515,000 2,515,000

$ 13110414 § 70,408,414 § 4,000,000 § 77,923,414

Annual debt service requirements fo maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30 Principal Interest Tofal
2000 4474347 4,325,786 8,800,133
2001 4,489,338 4,116,303 8,605,641
2002 4,699,456 3,888,437 8,587,893
2003 4,919,388 3,653,183 8,572,571
2004 and thereafter 59,340,885 28,276,642 87,617,527

§ 77923414 5 44,260,351 $ 122,183,765

Changes in Long-Term Obligations. During the year ended June 30, 1999, the following changes occurred
in liabilities reported in the general long-term obligations account group. Compensated absences will be paid
from the fund from which the employee is paid.
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July 1 Additions Deductions June 30
Compensated absences $ 6133522 $ 71678 0§ - $ 6,835,198
Accrued wages and benefits 500,773 170,242 671,015
General obligafion debt 79,408,414 2,515,000 4,000,000 77,923,414
Capital leases 385,990 900,000 322,399 963,51

$ 86,428,699 $4.286918 § 4322399 § 86,393,218
— & ——— __ ______ W - 3

Note 10. Legal Debt Margin

The Ohio Revised Code provides that voted net general obligation debt of the District shall never exceed 9%
of the tofal assessed valuation of the District. The code further provides that unvoted indebtedness shall not
exceed 1/10 of 1% of the property valuation of the District.

The effects of these debt limitations at June 30, 1899, is a voted debt margin of $136,716,849 and an unvoted
debt margin of $1,519,076.

Note 11. Segment Information-Enterprise Funds
Enterprise Funds - The District maintains fwo enterprise funds to account for the operations of food service

and uniform supplies. The table below summarizes the more significant financial data relating to the
enterprise funds of the District for the year ended June 30, 1989.
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Faod . Uniform Adult )
Service Supplies Education Total
Operating revenues $ 2,548,174 § 571,680 % © 1,790 0§ 3,121,644
Operating expenses {before 2,780,225 559,212 - 3,339,437
depreciation)

Depreciation 153,759 - - 153,758
Operating income (loss) (385.,810) 12,468 1,790 (371,8552)
Operating grants and

other non-operating revenue 498,003 - - 468,093
Metincome (Loss) 112,283 12,468 1,780 126,541
Net Working Capital 1,203,414 46,665 2,322 1,252,401
Total Assels 2,541,384 §6,869 2,322 2,600,575
Total Ligbllities 466,600 10,204 - 476,804
Total Equity 2,074,784 46,865 2,322 2,123,771

Note 12. Contributed Capital

Contributed capital is recorded in proprietary funds that have received capital contributions from other funds.
The status of contributed capital is as follows:

Source Food Service Fund
Contributed capital, July 1 5 855,607
Additions $ 440,237

Contributed capital, June 30 3 1,285,844

Note 13. Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters for which the District carries commercial
insurance. Below is a schedule of insurance coverage catrried by the District:
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Coverage Company Limits Deductible

Fleet a Indiana Insurance Company $ 1,000,000 per occurance $ 500 colision/pd
Property Indiana Insurance Company 145,093,663 blanket coverage 1,000 perloss
Genera| liability Indiana Insurance Company 100,000 per occurance/

2,000,000 aggregate
Liability umbrella Indiana Insurance Company 10,000,000 aggregate
Errors and omissions  Indiana Insurance Company 1,000,000 aggregate 2,500 perloss
Crime theft indiana {nsurance Company varies per building
Employee dishonesty  Cincinnati Insurance Company 3,000 per occurance

The government established a limited risk management program for workers' compensation in 1993.
Premiums are treated as quasi-external transactions that are paid into the workers' compensation fund by all
the other funds and are available to pay claims, claim reserves and administrative costs of the program. All
surplus retained earnings will be retained in the fund to cover any future catastrophe losses.

Note 14. Defined Benefit Pension Plans

School Empioyees Retirement System

The school Disfrict contributes to the School Employees Retirement System of Ohio (SERS), a cost-sharing,
multiple-employer, public employee retirement system administered by the School Employees Retirement
Board. SERS provides basic retirement benefits, disability, survivor, and health care benefits based on
eligible service credit to members and beneficiaries. Benefits are established by Chapter 3309 of the Ohio
Revised Code. SERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information for SERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the School
Employees Retirement System, 45 North Fourth Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3634,

Plan members are required to contribute 9 percent of their annual covered salary and the school District is
require to contribute 14 percent. For fiscal year 1999, 10.5 percent was the portion to fund pension
obligations. The centribution rates are not determined actuarially, but are established by SERS’ Retiremerit
Board within the rates allowed by state statute. The adequacy of the contribution rates is determined
annually. The school District’s required contributions for pension obligations to SERS for the fiscal years
ended June 30, 1999, 1998, and 1997 were $1,716,264, $1,426,610, and $1,163,632, respectively. The
District has confributed 50 percent for fiscal year 1999 and 100 percent for fiscal years 1998 and 1987.
$671,015 represents the unpaid contribution for fiscal year 1899, and is recorded as a liability within the
respective funds and the general long-term debt account group.

State Teachers Refirement System

The school District contributes to the State Teachers Refirement System of Ohio {(STRS), a cost-sharing,
multiple-employer, public employee retirement system administered by the State Teachers Retirement Board.
STRS provides basic retirement benefits, disability, survivor, and health care benefits based on eligibie
service credit fo members and beneficiaries. Benefits are estahlished by Chapter 3307 of the OChio Revised
Code. STRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for STRS. That report may be obtained by writing to the State Teachers
Retirement System, 275 East Broad Street, Columbus, Ohic 43215-3771.

Plan members are required to contribute 9.3 percent of their annual covered salary and the schoal District is
require o coniribute 14 percent. For fiscal year 1998, 12 percent was the portion to fund pension obligations.
Contribution rates are established by STRS, upon recommendation of its consulting actuaty, not to exceed
statutory maximum rates of 10 percent for members and 14 percent for employers. The school Disfrict’s
required coniributions for pension obligations to STRS for the fiscal years ended June 30, 1989, 1998, and
1997 were $5,763,960, $5,075,760, and $4,581,120, respectively. The District has contributed 83 percent for
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fiscal year 1999 and 100 percent for fiscal years 1998 and 1997. $915,892 represents the unpaid contribution
for fiscal year 1999, and is recorded as a liability within the respective funds.

Note 15. Postemployment Benefitis

The District provides comprehensive health care benefits to retired teachers and their dependents through the
State Teachers Retirement System (STRS) and to retired non-certified employees and their dependents
through the School Employees Retirement System (SERS). Benefits include hospitalization, physicians’ fees,
prescription drugs, and reimbursement of monthly Medicare premiums. Benefit provisions and the obligations
to contribute are established by the systems based on authority granted by state statute. Both systems are on

a pay-as-you-go basis.

For SERS, coverage is made available o service retirees with ten or more fiscal years of qualifying service
credit as well as disability and survivor benefit recipients. Members retiring on or after August 1, 1989 with
less than twenty-five years of service credit must pay a portion of their premium for health care. The portion is
based on years of service up to a maximum of 75 percent of the premium.

For this fiscal year, employer contributions to fund health care benefits were 4.98% of covered payroll, an
increase from 4.21% for fiscal year 1998. In addition, SERS levies a surcharge to fund health care benefits
equal to 14 percent of the difference between a minimum pay and the member's pay, pro-rated for partial
service credit. For fiscal year 1999, the minimum pay has been established at $12,400. The surcharge added
to the unallocated portion of the 14 percent employer contribution rate, provides for maintenance of the asset

target level for the health care fund.

The target [evel for the health care reserve is 125 percent of annual health care expenses. Expenses for
health care at June 30, 1998, were $111,900,575 and the target level was $139.2 million. At June 30, 1998,
SERS had net assets available for payment of health care benefits of $160.3 million. SERS has
approximately 50,000 participants currently receiving health care benefits. For the Disfrict, the amount to fund
health care benefits, including the surcharge, equaled $610,499 during the 19889 fiscal year.

The SERS Board has statutory authority over how much, if any of the health care costs will be absorbed by
STRS. Most benefit recipients pay a portion of the health care cost in the form of a monthly premium. By
Ohio law, the cost of coverage paid from STRS funds shall be included in the employer contribution rate,
currently 14 percent of covered payroll. Through June 30, 1998, the Board allocated employer contributions
equal to two percent of covered payroll fo the health care reserve fund. For July 1, 1899, this allocation was
3.5 percent of covered payroll. For the District, this amount equaied $1,440,990 during fiscal 1999.

STRS pays health care benefits from the health care reserve fund. The balance in the fund was $2,156
riillion at=June 30, 1998. For the year ended June 30, 1998, net health care costs paid by STRS were

$219,224,000 and STRS had 91,998 eligible benefit recipients.

Note 16. Budgetary Basis of Accounting

While reporting financial position, results of operations, and changes in fund balance or retained eamings on
the basis of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), the budgetary basis as provided by law is
based upon accounting for certain fransactions on a basis of cash receipts and disbursements. A
reconciiiation of the nature and amounts of the adjustments necessary to convert the GAAP financial
statements to the budgetary basis follows:
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Reconciliation of Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses from
GAAP Basis to Budgetary Basis

Special Debt Capital
General Revenue Service Project
Fund Funds Fund Funds
GAAP basis $ (1,134,468) $ 538,558 $ 978,405 $ 1945653
Net adjustment for revenue
accruals 281,015 (158,607) (36823,947) (1,955,167)
Net adjustment for expenditura
accruals 1,880,876 (51,012} - 244,258
Encumbrances (815,618) (169,3568) - (697,217)
Budgetary basis : $ 211,805 $ 159,581 $ 594,458, $ (462,473)

Note 17. Compliance and Accountabllity

State statute requires all funds to have expenditures and encumbrances within approved appropriation limits.
All funds of the District had expenditures and encumbrances within the approved appropriations.

Note 18. Contingent Liabllities

The District receives significant financial assistence from numerous federal, state and local agencies in the
form of grants. The disbursement of funds recelved under these programs generally requires compliance with
terms and conditions specified in the grant agreements and are subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Any
disallowed claims resuiting from such audits could become a liability of the general fund or other applicable
funds. However, in the opinion of management, any such disallowed claims will not have a material effect on
any of the financial statements of the individual fund types included herein or on the overall financial position
of the District at June 30, 19589. : ;

Note 19. Jointly Governed Organizations

Pursuant to an interlocal agreement authorized by state statute, the District parficipates in the Southwestermn
Ohio Computer Association (SWOCA) which is a computer consortium. SWOCA is an association of public
school Districts within the boundaries of Warren, Preble, and Butler counties and involves all cities that have

schooi Districts within these counties.

The organization was formed for the purpose of applying modemn technology with the ald of computers and
other electronic equipment to administrative and instructional functions among member Districts.

SWOCA is governed by a board of directors consisting of one representative from each of the participating
members. The District paid SWOCA $78,727 for services provided during the year. Financlal information
may be obtained from Mike Crumley at the Butler County Joint Vocational School, 3603 Hamilton-Middletown

Road, Hamilton, Ohio.
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Note 20. State School Funding Decision

On March 24, 1997, the Chio Supreme Court rendered a decision declaring certain portions of the Ohio
Schoo!l Funding Plan unconstitutional. The court stayed the effect of its ruling for one year to allow the Ohio
General Assembly to design a plan to remedy the perceived defects in the system. Declared unconstitutional
was the State’s “school foundation program” which provides significant amounts of monetary support to the
School District. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, the District received $23,597,739 of school

foundation suppaort for its general fund.

Since the Supreme Court ruiling, numerous pieces of [egisiation have been passed by the Ohio General
Assembly in an attempt to address the issues identified by the Court. The Court of Common Pleas in Perry
County has reviewed the new laws and, in a decision issued on February 26, 1999, determined they are not
sufficiently responsive to the constitutional issues raised under the “thorough and efficient” clause of the Ohio
Constitution. The State has appealed the decision made by the Court of Common Pleas to the Chio Supreme
Court. At this time, the Ohio Supreme Court has not rendered an opinion on this issue. The decision of the
Court of Common Pleas in Perry County has been stayed by the Ohio Supreme Court, and, as such, school
Districts are still operating under the laws that the Common Pleas Court declared unconstitutional.

As of the date of these financial statements, the District is unable to determine what effect, if any, this ongoing
litigation will have on its future State funding under this program and on its financial opsrations.

Note 21. Year 2000 Issue

The year 2000 issue is the result of shoricomings in many electronic data processing systems and other
equipment that may adversely affect the government’s operations.

The District has completed an inventory of computer systems and other electronic equipment necessary o
conducting Disfrict operations and has identified such systems as being financial reporting, payroll and
employee benefits and educational statistics reporting through the state’s Education Management and

Information Systerm (EMIS).

The District uses the state of Chio Uniform School Accounting System software for its financial reporting, and
the state of Ohio Uniform Staff Payrol! System software for its payroll and employee benefits. This software is
accessed through an agreement with the Southwestern Ohio Computer Association. The state is responsible

for remediating these systems.

The state of Ohio distributes a substantial sum of money to the District in the form of foundation payments as
well as federal and state grant payments. Further, the state processes a significant amount of financial and
nonfinancial information about the District through EMIS. The siate is responsible for remediating these

systems.

Butler County collects property taxes for distribution to the District. Butler County is responsible for
remediating the tax colfection sysfem and is solely responsible for all associated costs.

There were no remaining contracted amounts committed to this project as of June 30, 1989. All compliance
costs to date have been covered under current hardware and software support agreements with vendors.
Additional costs for year 2000 compliance will be appropriated as required for fiscal year 2000.

Because of the unprecedented nature of the year 2000 issue, its effects and the success of related
remediation efforts will not be fully determinable until the year 2000 and thereafter. Management cannot
assure that the District is or will be year 2000 ready, that the District’s remediation efforts will be successful in
whole or in part, or that parties with whom the District does business will be year 2000 ready.
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Note 22. Statutory Reserves

The School District is required by State statute to annually set aside in the general fund an amount based on a
statutory formulas for the purchase of textbooks and other instructional materials and an equal amount for the
acquisition and construction of capital improvements. Amounts not spent by year-end or offset by similarly
restricted resources received during the year must be held in cash at year-end and carried forward to be used
for the same purposes in future years. The School Disfrict is also required fo set aside money for budget

stabilization.

The following cash basis information describes the change in the year-end set-aside amounts for textbooks,
capital acquisition, and budget stabilization. Disclosure of this information is required by State statute.

Capital Budget

Textbook Acquisition  Stabilization

Reserve Reserve Reserve Totals
Set-aside Cash Balance as of June 30, 1998 $ - § - % 168998 § 168,998
Current Year Set-aside Requirement 1,165,269 1,165,269 682,635 $ 2,913,173
Current Year Offsets (123,324) - - $ (123,324)
Qualifying Disbursements (1,288,593) (648,927) - $ (1,937,520)
Total $ (246,648) $§ 516342 § 751,633 $ 1,021,327
Cash Balance Carried Forward to FY 2000 $0 $516,342 $751,633 $1,267.975

Total Restricted Assets $1 287,975

Although the District had offsets and qualifying disbursements during the year that reduced the sef-aside
amounts below zero, these extra amounts may not be used to reduce the set-aside requirements of future
years. Negative amounts are therefore not presented as being carried forward to the next fiscal year.
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GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is used to account for all activities of the district not included in other
specified funds. This includes, but is not limited to, general instruction, pupil services,
operations and maintenance of buildings and grounds, pupil transportation, and the
administration of District functions.
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LAKQTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
General Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Interest
Tuition and fees
Extracurricular activities
Other revenues

Fotal revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:

Begular:
Salories and wages
Fringe benefits
Purchased services
Materials and supplies
Capital outlay - new
Capital outlay - replacement
Other expenditures

Total regular

Special:
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Purchased services
Materials and supplies
Capital cutlay - new
Capital outlay - replacement
Total special

Vecational:
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Purchased services
Materials and supplies
Total vocational

Other:
Purchased services
Total other

51

Variance:
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$43,059,900 $43,941,088 $881,188
26,571,300 28,672,708 2,101,408
1,277,900 1,259,038 (18,862)
456,190 181,972 (74,218)
124,500 129,675 5175
485,000 484,922 (78)
71,974,790 74,869,403 2,894,613
29,178,246 29,178,246 0
71,287,172 7,287,172 0
71,743 71,743 0
1,188,982 1,188,982 0
118,909 118,909 0
6,393 6,393 0
750 750 0
37,852,195 37,852,195 0
3,972,154 3,972,154 0
1,044,924 1,044,924 0
13,563 13,563 0
33,947 33,947 0
17,615 17,615 0
637 637 0
5,082,840 5,082,840 0
185,735 185,735 0
49,825 49,825 0
703 T03 0
15,335 15,335 0
251,598 251,598 0
126,186 126,136 ]
126,186 126,186 0
Continued



LARQTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
General Fund (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Variance;
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Support services: ’ )
Pupil:
Salaries and wages 3,092,771 3,002,771 1]

Fringe benefits 737,846 737,846 0

Purchased services 83,966 83,966 0

Materials and supplies 51,964 51,964 0

Capital outlay - new 39,876 39,876 0

Total pupil 4,006,423 4,006,423 [+]
Instructional staff:

Salary and wages 2,674,194 2,674,194 0

Fringe benefits 772,669 772,669 0

Purchased services 118,819 118,819 4]

_ Materials and supplies 163,931 163,931 0
Capital outlay - new 16,341 16,341 i)
Capital outlay - replacement 2,925 2,925 0

Total instructional staff 3,748,879 3,748,879 0
Board of Education:

Salaries and wages 13,600 13,5600 0

Fringe benefits © 505 505 o

Purchased services 18,364 18,364 [0

Materials and supplies 96 26 0

Other expenditures 596 596 0

Total board of education 33,161 33,161 0
Administration:

Salaries and wages 4,360,517 4,360,517 0

Fringe benefits 1,255,719 1,255,719 0

Purchased services 274,309 274,309 0

Materials and supplies 125,048 125,048 0

Capital outlay - new 68,968 68,968 0

Capital outlay - replacement 24,805 24,805 0

Qther expenditures 3,712 3,712 0

Total school administration 6,113,078 6,113,078 0
Fiscal:

Salaries and wages 264,378 264,378 0
ww  Fringe bencfits 84,700 84,700 0
e . Purchased services 34,903 34,903 0

Materials and supplies 25373 25,373 Q

Capital outlay - new 30,542 30,542 0

Other expenditures 866,260 866,260 0

Total fiscal 1,306,156 1,306,156 0
Continued
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LARKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
General Fund (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Variance:
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Business:
Salaries and wages 191,108 191,108 0
Fringe benefits 50,482 50,482 0
Purchased services 4,402 4,402 0
Materials and supplies 65,782 6,782 0
Capital outfay - tiew 120 120 0
Total business 252,894 252,894 0
Operations and maintenance:
Salaries and wages 2,787,770 2,787,770 0
Fringe benefits 888,424 888,424 0
Purchased services 3,443,574 3,443,574 0
Materials and supplics 400,797 400,797 0
Cther 3.626 3,626 0
Capital outlay - new 402 402 0
Capital outlzy - replacement 5,215 3,215 0
Total aperations and maintenance 7,529,808 7,529,808 0
Pupil transportation:
Salaries and wages 3,240,496 3,240,496 ¢
Fringe benefits 1,072,384 1,072,884 0
Purchased services 275,650 275,650 0
Materials and supplies 453,741 453,741 0
Capftal outlay - new [,422 1,422 (1}
Capital cutlay - replacement 4,331 4,331 0
Other 169,625 169,625 0
Total pupil transportation 5,218,149 5,218,149 0
Central;
Salaries and wages 172,205 172,205 i)
Fringe benefits 52,310 52,310 0
Purchased services 414,254 414,254 ¢
Materials and supplics 14,258 14,258 L]
Capital outiay - new 47,785 47,785 1]
Total central 700,812 700,812 0
Qperation of non-instructional services
Salaries and wages 4075 4,075 0
Fringe benefits 3,933 3,933 0
Total food service operations 8,008 8,008 0
Total operation of non-instructional services 8.008 8,008 Q
Continued
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOQL DISTRICT, OHIO

3chedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Genera! Fund (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Extracurricular activities:

Academic and subject oriented activities
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits

Total academic and subject oriented activities

Occupation oriented activities
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits

Total occupation oriented activities

Sports oriented activities:
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Other

Total sporis oriented activities

School and Public Setvice:
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits

Total School and Public Service

Total extrzcurmicular activities

Capital Outlay
Building Improvement Services:
Capital outlay - new
Total Building Improvement Services

Total capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues
over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds of sale of fixed assets
Refund of prior year expenditures
Advances in
Advances (out)
Refund of prior year receipts
Qperating transfers {out)
Other financing uses

Total other financing sources (uses)

Variance:
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
113,220 113,220 0
14,658 14,658 0 )
127,878 127,878 Q0
847 847 0
57 57 0
904 904 a
863,278 863,278 0
163,579 163,579 0
18,268 18,268 0
1,045,125 1,045,125 0
94,871 94,871 0
14,741 14,741 0
109,612 109,612 0
1,283,519 1,283,519 0
0
219,637 219,637 0
219,637 219,637 ¢
219,637 219,637 [
73,733,343 73,733,343 0
{1,758,553) 1,136,060 2,894,613
$4,600 $27,662 23,062
8,400 14,108 5,708
4,800 0 {4,800)
(279,855) (279,855) 0
{169,123) (169,123) 4]
(516,947) (516,947) 0
(673,991) 0 673,991
(1,622,116} (924,155) 697,961
Continued
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
General Fund (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Excess of revenues and other
financing sources over (under)
expenditures and other financing uses

Fund balance, July 1 (Includes prior
year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 30

Variance:

Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
(3,380,669) 211,905 3,592,574
10,889,361 10,589,361 0
$7,908,692 $11,101,266 $3,592,574
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources other
than major capital projects or expendable trusts that are legally restricted to expenditure for
specified purposes. The following are descriptions of each Special Revenue Fund.

Public School Support

To account for specific local revenue sources, other than taxes, generated by individual school
buildings (i.e. sales of pictures, profits from vending machines, etc.) Expenditures include field
trips, materials equipment and other items to supplement co-curricular and extra-curricular

programs.
Other Grants

To account for proceeds of specific revenue sources, except for state and Federal grants, that are
legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. These grants include:

Toshiba Grant
Wellness Grant
Davies Foundation Grant
Neediest Kids of All Grant
Early Childhood Mini Grant
Parents and Problem Solving Grant
Cinergy Planning Grant
Wal-Mart Teacher of the Year Grant

Venture Capital

To account for state funds which are provided for staff development.

Athletic Fund

To account for those student activity programs which have student participation in the activity,
but do not have student management of the programs.

Teacher Development Grant

To account for state funds which are provided for staff development for certificated employees.
Peer i iew

To account for State Funds which are provided to supplement a student peer assistance and
review program for conflict management.
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Management Information System

To account for state funds, which are provided to assist the district in implementing a staff,
student, and financial reporting system as, mandated by the Omnibus Education Reform Act of

1989.

School Net Professional Development

To account for state funds which are provided for staff development in the area of technology.

Textbook Subsidy

To account for state funds to purchase instructional materials used to support proficiency test
objectives.

ell s State Grants

Teo account for state funds which are designated for specific purposes. Two particular programs
are for environmental awareness and adult education.

isenhower Grant

To account for the training of teachers in new techniques and methodologies in the areas of
mathematics and science.

Ti -B
To account for the provision of full educational opportunities to handicapped children at the
preschool, elementary and secondary levels; assist in the training of teachers, supervisors and
other specialists in providing educational services to the handicapped.
Title I

To account for services provided to meet special educational needs of educationally deprived
children.

Title VI
To account for programs for the at-risk students; instruction materials to irnprove the quality of

instruction; programs of professional development; programs to enhance personal excellence of
students and student achievement.
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Emergency Immigrant Education Program

To account for Federal Funds designed to assist eligible immigrant children enrolled in public
schools.

Drug Free Schools

To account for the establishment, operation and improvement of programs for drug abuse
prevention, early intervention, rehabilitation referral and education in schools.

EHA Preschoot

To account for programs for preschool handicapped children.

Telecommunications Grant

To account for Federal Funds for updating or replacing telecommunications equipment. The
finds are reimbursed to the district for prior expenditures incurred in prior ears and expended to
the originating fund. This fund is also used to account for E-Rate funds paid directly to the

vendor.

Miscellaneous Federal Grants

To account for federal funds which are designated for specific purposes. One particular program
is for the development of a School to Work model curriculum for grades kindergarten through

adult.
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIC

COMBINTG BALANCE SHERT
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

June 30, 1999

Assels
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents
Recejvables:
Acecounts
Intergovernmental

Total Asecis

Linbilities
Accounts payeble
Aocrued wages
Interfurd payable

Total liabilities
Fond belances:
Reserved:
Reserved for encombrances
Unreserved:
Undesignated
‘Total fund equity (deficit)

Total fisbilitics and fund equity

Public
Srhool Other Venture Athletic
Support Grants Capital Fund
$267,339 $14,576 311,597 $205,609
1,814 0 0 4,991
0 0 0 0
269,133 14,576 11,597 210,600
33,267 127 589 15,649
0 0 0 0
¢ ] 4 3,076
33,267 127 589 18,725
29,132 107 360 43,312
206,754 14,342 10,648 138,563
235,885 14,449 11,008 191,873
$255,153 $14,575 311,597 $210,600
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Peer Management School Net Miscellaneous
Teacher Assistance and Information Professional Textbook State
Development Review System Development Subsidy Grants
$17,358 $11,166 $1.421 $1,050 $258,390 $1,728
0 1] 4] a 0 4]
0 ) 0 g 0 0
17,358 11,106 1,421 1,050 258,390 1,728
496 0 0 0 3,736 0
[¢] 0 252 0 [ 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
496 0 252 0 3,736 0
1,467 0 Q 0 4,998 0
15,395 11,106 1,169 1,050 249,656 1,728
16,862 11,106 1,169 1,050 254,654 1,728
317,358 $11,106 $1,421 31,050 $258,390 $1.728
CONTINUED
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHQOL DISTRICT, OHIO

COMBINING B.&1 ANCE SHERT - -
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (CONTINUEL)

June 30, 1999
Eisenhower
Grant Title VIB Title I Title VI
Assets ) ) ) ’
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents $31,591 $55,711 $3,677 $23,597
Receivables:
Acoounts [ o 4 [
Intergovernmental 20,246 \ 0 15,153
Total Assets 51,837 535,711 3,677 38,750
Linbilities
Acoounts payuble 1,068 ¢ 120 1,422
Accrued wages 349 39,454 0 0
Interfimd payable 7487 i} 4] 1,808
Total linbilitics 8,384 39,454 120 3,230
Fund balances:
Reserved:
Reserved for encumbrances 9,080 a 163 5,214
Urreserved:
Undesignated 33,873 16,257 3,394 30,306
Total fund equity (deficit) 42,953 16,257 3,557 35,320
Total fiabilitics and fund equity $51,837 355,711 $3,677 $38,750
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Miscellancous

Emergency
Immigrant Drug Free EHA Telecommunications Federal
Education Program Schools Pre-Schoaol Grant Grants Totals
36,891 $20,785 $11,207 $35,484 822,748 $1,001,863
0 0 0 0 0 6,805
0 0 [ 5,189 Y 40,588
6,891 20,785 11,207 40,673 22,748 1,045,258
73 2,249 1,799 0 ) 60,645
0 6,633 4,689 0 [i] 51,377
0 0 0 0 0 12,351
y£] 8,882 6,488 0 10 124,373
3,802 537 0 0 0 108,172
3,016 11,366 4,719 40,673 22,698 816,713
6,818 11,903 4,719 40,673 22,698 924,885
36,891 $20,785 $11,207 $40,673 322,748 51,049,258
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LAKQOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Conshining Statement of Revenues. Expendifures
And Changes in Fund Balances
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS3
Far The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1959

Public
School Other Venture Athletic Teacher
Support Grants Capital Fund Development
Revenmes:
Intergovernmental 30 30 550,000 ¢ 558379
Interest 0 0 0 2,108 0
Brtracurricular activities 402,122 o] 0 487,856 \]
Gifts and donations 172,591 12,616 4] 29,058 0
Other revenues 962 19,131 0 2,269 0
Total revemes 575,675 31,747 50,000 521291 58379
Bxpenditures:
Cutrent:
Instruction:
Regular 0 4,114 21,279 0 13,815
Special 0 0 0 0 0
Vacational 0 877 0 0 0
Support services:
Pupil 511,580 238 0 0 o}
Instructional Staff 122 ¢} 23,753 0 29,126
Administeation 0 ¢] 200 0 0
Pupil transportation 0 Q [ [+ o
Cantral 0 12,710 0 Q 0
Opermtion of non-instructional
services Q 0 Q [} 0
Bxtracurricular activities 0 [} 0 579,412 Q
Total Bxpenditures 511,702 17,939 45232 579412 4&_9_&1
Bxcess of revenues over
(under) expenditures 63,573 13,808 4,768 (58,121) 15,438
Other financing sources (uses):

Operating transfers in 1] 0 1] 118,347 0
Total other financing sources {uses) 1} 0 Y 118,347 4]
Bxceas of revenues end other
finencing sources over (inded)
oxpendinnres snd ofher
Bnancing vscs £3,973 13,808 4,768 50,226 15,438
Fund balunee, Tuly 1 171,913 641 65,240 131,649 1,424
Fund balance, June 30 $235,886 314,449 $11,008 $151,875 $16,862
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Pear Management School Det Miscellaneous
Assistance Information Professional Textbook State Eisenhawer
and Review _Sysiem Development Subsidy Grants Grant

$0 $39,823 30 $203,134 51,500 360,459

[+] 0 1] ' 0 o [+]

0 0 0 0 0 0

0 Q 0 0 o] Q

0 0 0 ] [ Q

0 39,323 [7] 203134 1,500 80,499

0 0 0 32,233 0 28,267

a 0 o ) [+ o

1] 0 0 o 0 0

0 0 Q 0 Q 0

I 0 0 0 1] 703

0 4] 0 1] 0 1]

0 0 0 0 0 1]

1] 45,932 0 0 g g

o] 0 ) o 0 4]

0 Q 1] 0 0 1]

378 45,932 o] 32233 ] X 28,970
(378 (6,108) ] _170,901 1,500 31,529

0 ] 0 4] ] [+]

] Q 1] 0 0 <]

(378) (&,109) 0 170,901 1,500 31,529
11,484 7278 1,050 83,753 228 11,424
$11,106 $1,169 $1.050 “$254.654 T ¥L,008 T $42953

CONTINUED
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LAXOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Combining Statement af Revernues, Expenditures

And Changes it Fund Balances

ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (CONTINUED)

For The Fiscal Year BEnded June 30, 1999

Revenues:

Intergovemmentsl
Interest

Extracurricular activities
Qifts and donations
Other reveames

Total revenucs

Bxpenditures:
Current:

Instruction:
Regular
Special
Vocational

Support services:
Pupil
Instructional Staff
Pupil transpartation
Central

Operation of non-instructional
sarvices

Extracumicular activities

Tota] Bxpenditures

Excess of revenues over

(undex) expenditures

Crher financing sources (uses):
Operating transfes i

Total other financing sources (ises)

Excess of revenues and other

financing sources over (inder)

wpenditares snd other

financing uses

Fund balance, Raly 1

Fund balance, Fune 30

Emergency
Immigrant Drug Free
Title VIB Title I Title VI Education Program Sheols

$431,259 $225.042 $81,330 26,568 $78,607
a 0 0 0 a

] 0 0 0 G

0 0 0 0 a

0 0 0 0 0
431,299 229,042 81,330 6,968 78,607
0 0 1,629 2,799 10,367

2,324 182,334 0 0 0

0 ) ¢ 0 a
349,928 0 0 0 52,415
32,306 0 62,722 210 0
0 0 0 0 0

9,510 0 0 0 0

0 0 ¢ ] 0

0 0 0 o ]

0 0 0 0 ]
194,068 182,334 64,351 3,009 62,782
37,231 46,708 16979 3,959 15,825
0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0
37231 46,708 16,979 3,959 15,825
(20,974) (43,151 18,541 2,859 (3.922)
$16.257 83,557 $35,520 36818 311,503
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Miscellaneous

EHA Telecommunications Federal

Pre-School Grant Grants — '{o;s{s i
336,475 $40,673 $21,682 $1,339,411
Q 0 0 2,108
0 0 0 889,978
0 ] 0 214,265
0 0 0 12362
36,475 40,673 21,682 2,468,124
7,673 0 s12 122,688
0 Q 0 184,658
0 0 ] £77
27,076 0 0 941,237
0 0 TEy 150,089
0 0 0 200
0 0 0 9,510
0 0 0 58,642
[+] a 00 Lo
] 0 579,412
34,749 [} 1,881 2,047,913
1726 40,673 19,301 420211
] 0 0 118,347
@ [ 0 118,347
L7286 40,673 19,801 538,558
2,993 o 2,897 386,327
$4,719 340,673 $22,69% $924,885
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Public School Support Special Revenue Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
From local sources:
Extracurricular activities
Other local revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Support Services

Pupils:
Purchased services
Materials and supplies
Capital outlay - new
Capital outlay - replacement
Other

Total pupils

Instructional staff
QOther
Total instructional staff

Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Refund of prior year expenditures
Refund of prior year receipts
Other financing uses

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess of revenues and other
financing sources over (under)
expenditures

Fund balance, July 1 (includes prior
year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 30

Variance:
Favorabie
Budget Actual {(Unfavorable)
$353,800 $353,800 $0
112,700 112,700 0
466,500 466,500 0
39,079 39,079 1]
419,038 419,038 0
22,099 22,099 0
82,654 82,654 0
3,916 3,916 0
566,786 566,786 ]
322 322 0
322 322 0
567,108 567,108 0
{100,608) (100,608) 0
0 962 (962)
(581) (581) 0
(72,652) 0 (72,652)
(73,233) 381 (73,614)
(173,841) (100,227) 73,614
192,715 192,715 0
$18,874 $92.488 $73,614
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LAKDTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Other Grants Special Revenue Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

VYariance:
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
From local sources:
Qther [ocal revenues $11,875 $12,616 $741
Total revenues 11,875 12,616 741
Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Regular
Salaries 277 140 137
Materials and supplies 5,429 1,667 3,762
Capital cutlay - new 2,791 2,347 444
Total regular instruction 8,497 4,154 4,343
Vocational
Materials and supplies 2,060 598 1,402
Capital outlay - new 1,000 279 721
Total vocationatl instruction 3,000 877 2,123
Support services:
Puplls
Capital cutlay - new 238 238 0
Total pupils 238 238 0
Instructional staff
Purchased services 2,975 0 2,975
Total instructional staff 2,975 0 2,975
Administration
Purchased services 100 0 100
Total administration 100 0 100
Central
Purchased services 1,170 655 515
Materials and supplies 12,141 11,626 515
Other 875 496 379
Totsl central 14,186 12,777 1,409
Total expenditures 28,996 13,046 10,950
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures (17,121) (5,430) 11,691
Other financing sources (uses):

Other financing sources 19,420 0 (19,420)
Total other financing sources (uses) 19,420 [1] (19,420)
Excess of revenues and other
financing sources over (under)
expenditures 2,299 (5,430} (7,729
Fund balance, July 1 (Includes prior 641 641 0

year encumbrances appropriated)
Fund balance, June 30 $2,940 (84,789 (§7,729)
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOQL DISTRICT, OHID
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Venture Capital Special Revenue Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Variance:
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Intergovernmental $50,000 $50,000 50
Total revenues 50,000 50,000 0
Expenditures:

Current:

Instruction:
Regular:
Salaries and wages 14,170 14,170 0
Materials and supplies 7,469 7,469 0
Total regular 21,639 21,635 0
Support services:
Instructional staff:
Purchased services 24,052 24,052 0
Total instructional staff 24,052 24,052 0
Administration:
Salaries 200 200 4]
Total administration 200 200 0
Total expenditures 45,891 45,891 0

Excess of revenues (under) expenditures 4,109 4,109 0
Other financing sources (uses):

Other financing uses (7,877) 0 7,877
Total other financing sources (uses): {7,877) 0 7,877
Excess of revenues and other
financing sources over (under)
cxpenditures (3,768) 4,109 7,877
Fund balance, July 1 (Includes prior 6,539 6,539 0

year encumbrances appropriated)
Fund balance, June 30 $2,771 $10,648 $7,877
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual {(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

Athletic S'ppcial Revenue Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Exftracurticular activities
Other local revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Bxtracurricular activities:
Academic and subject oriented activities:
Materials and supplies
Capital outlay - new
Total academic and subject oriented activities

Sports oriented activities:
Purchased services
Materials and supplies
Capital outlay - new
Other expenditures

Total sports oriented activities

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Other firancing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in
Refund of prior year expenditures
Advances in
Other financing uses

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and other uses

Fund balance, July 1 (Includes prior
year encutnbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 30

Variance:
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

50 $2,108 $2,108
428,240 441 056 12,816
20,430 29,058 8,628
448 670 472,222 23,552
743 743 0
2,100 2,100 0
2,843 2,843 0
187,593 187,593 0
336,504 336,504 0
56,865 56,865 0
62,874 62,874 Y
643,836 643,836 0
646,679 646,679 0
(198,009) (174,457) 23,552
118,000 118,347 347
200 2,269 2,069
4] 3,076 3,076
(60,842) 0 60,842
57,358 123,692 66,334
(140,551) (50,765) 89,886
144,517 144,517 0
$3,866 $93,752 $89,886
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Teacher Development Special Revenue Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Regular:
Salaries and wages
Materials and supplies
Total regular
Support services:
Instructional staff
Purchased Services
Capital outlay - new
Total instructional staff’

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Fund balaoce, July } (Includes prior
year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 30

Variance:
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

$58,380 $58,380 0
58,380 58,380 0
5315 5315 0
9,602 9,602 0
14,917 14,917 0
77,017 56,834 20,183
900 0 200
- 77,917 56,834 21,083
92,834 71,751 21,083
{34,454) (13,371) 21,083
32,086 32,086 0
($2,368) 518,715 $21,083
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GA AP Budgetary Basis)
Peer Assistance and Review Special Revenue Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Total revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
Support Services:
Instructional staff
Salaries

Total instructional staff

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, July 1 (Includes prior
year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance (deficit), June 30

Variance:
Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)

50 50 50
0 0 0
11,106 378 10,728
11,106 378 10,728
11,106 378 10,728
(11,106) @378 10,728
11,484 11,484 0
$378 311,106 $10,728
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOQL DISTRICT, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

Management Information Systems Special Revenue Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovemmental

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Support services:

Central:
Salaries
Fringe benefits
Materials and supplies

Total Central

Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures
Fund balance, July 1 (Includes prior

year encumbrances appropriated}

Fund balance, June 30

Variance:
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$39,823 $39,823 30
39,823 39,823 0
40,380 36,580 3,800

8,156 8,156 0
1,796 1,796 0
50,332 46,532 3,800
50,332 46,532 3,800
(10,509) {6,709) 3,800
8,130 8,130 0
(82,379 51,421 $3,800
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

Scheduie of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

School Net Professional Development Special Revenue Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Variance:
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable}
Revenues:

Intergovernmental 50 $0 $0
Total revenues 0 0 0
Expenditures:

Current:

Support services:
Instructional staff:

Salaries 1,050 0 1,050
Total instructional staff 1,050 0 1,050
Total expenditures 1,050 0 1,050
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures (1,050) 0 1,050

Fund balance, July 1 (includes prior
year encumbrances appropriated) 1,050 1,050 0
Fund balance, June 30 $0 $1,050 $1,050
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Textbook Subsidy Special Revenue Fund
For the Fiscal Year Epded June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Regular
Materials and supplies
Total regular

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, July 1 (Inciudes prior
year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 30

Variance:

Favorabie
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$203,134 $203,134 $0
203,134 203,134 0
215,268 36,251 179,017
215,268 36,251 179,017
215,268 36,251 179,017
(12,134) 166,883 179,017
86,510 86,510 0
874,376 $253,393 $179,017
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHQOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Miscellaneous State Grants Special Revenue Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Variance:
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Intergovernimental £1,500 $£1,500 0
Miscellaneous 45 181 136
Total revenues 1,545 1,681 136
Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Regular:
Materials and supplies $500 $0 $500
Other 100 Y 100
Total regular 600 0 600
Special: .
Materials and supplies ) $139 $139 $0
Total special 139 139 0
Support services:
Instructional staff
Purchased Services 900 0 200
Total instructional staff 900 0 900
Total expenditures 1,639 139 1,500
Bxcess of revenues over (under) expenditures ©4) 1,542 1,636
Fund balance, July 1 (Includes prior
year encumbrances appropriated) 186 186 ¢
Fund balance (deficit), June 30 $92 $1,728 $1,636
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Eisenhower Grant Special Revenue Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Variance:
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Intergovernmental $84,931 $40,252 ($44,679)
Total revenues 84,931 40252 (44,679)
Expenditures:

Current:

Instruction:
Regular:
Salaries and wages 25,802 15,338 10,464
Fringe benefits 3,510 274 3,236
Purchased services 5,360 3,805 1,555
Materials and supplies 18,515 . 14,432 4,083.
Capital outlay - new 8,764 0 8,764
Total regular 61,951 33,849 28,102
Support services:
Instructional staff:
Purchased services 6,801 1,453 5,348
Total instructional staff 6,801 1,453 5,348
Total expenditures 68,752 35,302 33,450
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures 16,179 4,950 (11,229)
Other financing sources (uses):

Advances in 0 9,275 9,275

Refund of prior year receipts (1,446) (1,446) 0
Total gfher financing sources (uses) (1,446) 7,829 9,275
Excess of revenues and other
financing sources over (under)
expenditures and other financing uses 14,733 12,779 (1,954)
Fund balance, July 1 (includes prior

year encmmbrances appropriated) 12,196 12,196 0
Fund balance, June 30 $26,929 524,975 ($1,954)
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

Title VI B 8pecial Revenue Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Special:
Salarjes
Fringe benefits
Total special instruction

Support services:
Pupil:
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Total Pupil

Instructional staff:
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits

Total instructional staff

Pupil transportation:
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Total pupil transportation
Total support services
Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, July I (Includes prior
year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 30

Variance:
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

$586,596 $474,891 ($111,705)
586,596 474,891 {111,705)
6,005 2,270 3,735
577 0 577
6,582 2,270 4312
344,921 294,406 50,515
109,614 57,806 51,808
454,535 352212 102,323
38,291 25,817 12,474
8,274 5,705 2,569
46,565 31,522 15,043
21,200 9,078 12,122
1,872 0 1,872
23,072 . 9,078 13,994
524,172 352,812 131,360
530,754 395,082 135,672
55,842 79,809 23,967
19,497 19,497 o
$75,339 $99,306 $23,967
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual {Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

Title I Special Revenue Fund
For the Fiscal.Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

TFotal revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

Instruction:
Special:
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Purchased services
Materials and supplies

Total special
Operation of non-instructional services

Community Services
Purchased services

Total operation of non-instructional services
Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):
Refimnd of prior year receipt

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and other uses

Fund balance, July 1 (Includes prior
year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 30

Variance:

Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$229,042 $246,003 816,961
229,042 246,003 16,961
175,807 175,807 0
48,126 48,126 0
725 474 251
1,532 1,412 120
-0
226,190 225,819 37
3,022 0 3,022
3,022 0 3,022
229,212 225,819 3,393
(1703 20,184 20,354
(290) £290) 0
(290) {290) 0
(460) 19,894 20,354
460 460 0
50 $20,354 $20,354
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

Title VI Speeial Revenue Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Regular:
Materials and supplies
Capital outlay - new
Total regular

Support services:
Instructional staff
Purchased services
Total instructional staff

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, July 1 (Includes prio
year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 30

Variance:
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$84,575 $49,217 (835,358)
84,575 49217 (35,358)
5,930 1,629 4,301
1,515 1,515 0
7445 3,144 4,301
84,795 67,936 16,859
84,795 67,936 16,859
92,240 71,080 21,160
(7,665) {21,863) (14,198)
20,055 20,055 0
$12,3%0 ($1,808) ($14,198)
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

Emergency Immigrant Education Program Special Revenue Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Variance:
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Intergovernmental $6,968 $6,968 50
Total revenues 6,968 6,968 0
Expenditures:

Current:

Instruction:
Regular
Materials and supplies 8,074 6,601 1,473
Total regular 8,074 6,601 1,473
Support Services:
Instructional staff
Purchased services 210 210 0
Total instructional staff 210 210 0
Total expenditures 8,284 6,811 1,473

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures (1,316) 157 1,473

Fund balance, July I (Includes prior
year encumbrances appropriated) 2,859 2,859 0
Fund balance (deficit), June 30 $1,543 $3,016 $1,473

82



LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Drug Free Schools Special Revenue Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Variance:
Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Intergovernmental $92,901 $78,607 ($14,294)
Total revenues 92,901 78,607 (14,294)
Expenditures:

Current:

Instruction:
Regular:
Materials and supplies 5,764 2,394 3,370
Capital outlay - new 2,757 2,757 0
Total regular 8,521 5,151 3,370
Support Services:
Pupils:
Salaries 51,060 36,900 14,160
Fringe benefits 13,555 7,921 5,634
Materials and supplies 21,385 12,504 8,881
Capital outlay -~ new ) 322 322 0
Total pupils 86,322 57,647 28,675
Pupil transportation:
Purchased services 2,000 0 2,000
Total pupil fransportation 2,000 0 2,000
Total expenditures 96,843 62,798 34,045
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures {3.942) 15,800 19,751
Fund balance, July 1 (Includes prior
year encumbrances appropriated) 2,191 2,191 0
Fund balance, June 30 ($1,751) $18,000 $19,751
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

Scheduie of Revemaes, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

EHA Pre-School Special Revenue Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Regular:
Capital outlay - new

Total regular
Support services:
Pupil;
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Materials and supplies
Capital outlay - new

Total pupil

Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over {under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):

Refund of prior year receipts

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and other uses

Fund balance, July 1 (includes prior
year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance (deficit), June 30

Variance:
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$40,053 $36,475 ($3,57%)
40,053 36,475 (3,578)
3,762 3,598 164
3,762 3,598 164
30,796 26,247 4,549
9,495 1,144 8,351
6,972 2,059 4,913
5,577 600 4,977
52,840 30,050 22,790
56,602 33,648 22,954
(16,549) 2,827 19,376
(820) {820) 0
(820) (820) 0
(17,369) 2,007 19,376
7,359 7.399 0
($9,970) $9,400 $19,376
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Telecommunications Grant Special Revenue Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Total revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
Support Services:
Instructional staff
Salaries
Total instructional staff

Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, July 1 (Includes prior
year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance (deficit), June 30

Variance:
Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)

$35,484 $35,484 50
35,484 35,484 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
35,484 35,484 0
0 0 4]
$35,484 $35,434 S0
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Miscellaneous Federal Grants Special Revenue Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

.

Variance:
Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $21,276 $21,682 $406
Total revenues 21,276 21,682 406
Expenditures:
Current:
Ingtruction:
Regular
Salaries 195 195 0
Fringe benefits 90 ¢ 90
Materials and supplies 467 317 150
Capital outlay - new 600 0 600
Total regular instruction 1,352 512 840
Support services:
instructional staff
Salaries and Wages 1,000 i} 1,000
Fringe Benefits 160 0 160
Purchased services 15,000 0 15,000
Materials and supplies 2,832 769 2,063
Other 170 0 170
Total instructional staff 19,162 769 18,393
Administration
Fringe benefits 400 0 400
Total administration 400 0 400
Operation and maintenance of plant
Materials and supplies 100 0 100
Total operation and maintenance of plant 100 0 100
Central
Materials and supplies 200 ] 200
Total central 200 ] 200
Mon-instructional services
Community services
Purchased services 600 550 50
Materials and supplies 300 0 300
Other 80 qQ 80
Total community services 930 550 430
Total expenditures 22,194 1,831 20,363
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures (218) 19,851 20,769
Fund balance, July 1 (Includes prior 2,896 2,896 0
Year encumbrances appropriated)
Fund balance, fune 30 $1,978 $22,747 $20,76%
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DEBT SERVICE FIIND

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources and payment of
general obligation bond principal and interest and certain other long-term obligations from
governmental resources when the government is obligated in some manner for the payment. It is
also used to account for the accumulation of resources and payment of general obligation notes
pavable, as required by Chio Law. -

Since there is only one Debt Service Fund and the level of budgetary control is not greater that
that presented in the Combined Financial Statements, no additional financial statements are

presented here.
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for the financing and acquisition of
construction of major capital facilities, such as new school buildings, additions to existing
buildings, or for major renovation projects. The following are descriptions of each

Capital Projects Fund.

Permanent Improvement

To account for major improvements or renovations to existing facilities and bus
purchases.

Building

To account for the receipts and expenditures related to the 1994 Bond Issue.
Expenditures represent the costs of acquiring capital facilities including real property.

School Net

To account for state funds used to purchase technology and infrastructure.
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Jurie 30, 1999

Assets;

Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents

Total Assets

Lisbilities:
Agcounts payable
Interfund payable
Accrued interest payable
Retainage payable

Total lizbilities
Fund balances;
Reserved:
Reserved for encambrances
Undesignated
Total fund equity (deficit)

Total Ligbilitics and fund equity

Permanent School

Improvement _ Building Net Totals
$1,526,940 $50,236 $200,611 $1,777,787
1,526,940 50,236 200,611 1,777,787
1] 2,628 972 3,600
0 246,104 0 246,104
0 3312 0 3,312
0 66,755 0 66,755
0 318,799 972 319,771
639,240 (424,600) 481,605 696,245
887,700 156,037 (281,966) 761,771
1,526,940 (268,563) 199,639 1,458,016
$1,526,940 $50,236 $200,611 $1.771.187
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LAKQOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expendrtures

And Changes in Fund Balances
All Capital Projects Funds

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Regular
Special
Support services:
Instractional staff

Operations and maintenance

Capital outlay
Debt Service:
Interest

Total Expenditures

Excess of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other firancing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers (out)
Proceeds of Bonds
Premium on bonds sold

Total other financing sources (uses)
Excess of revenues and other
financing sources over (ender)
expenditures and other

financing uses

Fund balance, July 1

Fund balance, June 30

Permanent School
Improvement _ Building Net Totals

50 $0 $0 $0

0 0 [ [}

0 0 665,504 665,504

o o 22,343 22,343

0 0 28,128 28,128

0 0 36,010 36,010

480 0 0 430

0 30,993 0 30,993

480 30,993 751,985 783,458
(430) (30,993 (751,985) (783,458)

0 1,206,271 0 1,206,271
0 (595,000) 0 (995,000)

1,520,000 995,000 0 2,515,000
2,840 0 0 2,840

1,522 840 1,206,271 0 2,729,111
1,522,360 1,175,278 (751,985) 1,945,653
4,580 (1,443,84]) 951,624 (487,637)
$1,526,940 (5268,563) $199,635 $1,458016
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Permanent Improvement - Capital Projects Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:

Other local sources
Total revenues
Expenditures:

Current:

Support services:

Pupil transportation
Capital outlay - replacement

Total pupil transportation
Capital Outlay:
Capital cutlay - new
Total capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds from sale of long term notes
Other financing uses

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and other financing uses

Fund balance, July 1 (Includes prior
year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 30

Variance:
Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)

30 50 50
0 0 0
639,240 " 639,240 0
0
639,240 639,240 0.
480 430 0
480 480 0
639,720 639,720 0
{639,720) (639,720) 0
1,522,840 1,522,840 0
(65,340) 0 65,340
1,457,500 1,522,840 65,340
817,780 883,120 65,340
4,580 4,580 0
$822,360 $887,700 $65,340




LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Bxpenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Building Capitai Projects Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Cepital outlay:
Building acquisition and construction services
Purchased services
Materials and supplies
Capital outlay - new

Total buiiding acquisition and construction services

Building improvement services
Purchased services

Capital outlay - new

- Total building improvement services

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Advances in
Other financing uses

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess of revenues and other
financing sources over (under)
expenditures and other financing uses

Fund balance, July 1 (Includes prior
year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 30

Variance:
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
£0 50 $0
0 0 0
113,087 113,087 0
21,619 21,619 0
195,883 195,883 0
330,589 330,589 0
26,427 25,947 480
1,556 1,556 0
27,983 27,503 480
358,572 358,092 430
(358.572) (358,092) 480
$120,000 £0 (120,000}
247,000 246,104 (896)
{799) {14y 785
366,201 246,090 (120,111)
7,629 (112,002) (119,631)
112,002 112,002 0
$119,631 30 (8119,631)
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

School Net - Capital Projects Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:

Regular
Salaries and wages
Materials and supplies
Capital cutlay - new

Total regular

Special
Materials and supplies
Capital outlay - new
Total special

Support services:

Instructional stafT:
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Purchased services
Materials and supplies
Capital outlay - new

Total instructional staff:

Operation and maintenance
Purchased services

Total operation and maintenance

Central

Capital outlay - new
Total central

Total Expenditures

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, July 1 (Includes prior
year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund baiance, June 30

Variance:
Favorable

Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
$0 50 $0
1) 0 0
10,480 9,775 705
70,410 70,410 0
1,137,406 1,021,833 115,573
1,218,296 1,102,018 116,278
8,728 8,728 0
19,170 19,170 1]
27,898 27,898 0
77,939 10,633 67,306
30 30 0
14,233 5,587 8,646
9,391 9,391 0
32,995 32,995 0
134,588 58,636 75,952
36,010 36,010 0
36,010 36,010 0
9,029 9,029 0
9,029 9,029 0
1,425,821 1,233,591 192,230
(1,425,821 (1,233,591) 192,230
1,426,460 1,426,460 0
$639 $192,869 $192,230

93



ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds are established to account for operations that are financed and operated
in a manner similar to private sector business where the intent is that the expense
(including depreciation) of providing goods or services primarily or solely to the general
public be financed or recovered primarily through user charges. A description of the

District’s Enterprise Funds follows:

Food Service

A fund used to account for all revenues and expenses related to the provision of food
services of the District.

Uniform School Supply

A rotary fund provided to account for the purchase and sale of school supplies as adopted
by the Board of Education for use in the schools of the District.

Adult Education

A fund used to account for all revenues and expenses related to the provision of non-
credit classes to the general public.
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS

June 30, 1999

Assets
Current Assets:
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:
Accounts
Ixtergovernmental
Inventory held for resale
Materials and supplies inveatory

Total Current Assets

Non-current assets:
Fixed assets (net of accumulated

depreciation)
Total Assets

Liahilities
Current [iabilities:
Agcounts payable
Accrued wages
Compensated absenoes payable
Deferred revenue
Total current linbilities

Fund equity and other crediis
Contributed capital

Retained Earnings:
Thrreserved

Total fand equity and other credits

Total Liabilities and fund equity

Food Uniform School Adult
Service Supply Education Total

$1,551,772 $56,796 $2,322 $1,610,890
1,340 73 0 1,413
73,870 1] 4] 73,870
30,523 0 o 30,523
12,509 ¢ 0 12,50%
1,670,014 56,869 2,322 1,729,205
871,370 0 0 871,370
2,541.384 56,869 2,322 2,600,575
133,928 10,204 g 144,132
196,527 0 0 196,527
116,535 0 1] 116,535
19,610 0 1] 19,610
466,600 10,204 0 476,804
1,295,844 0 1} 1,295,844
778,940 46,665 2322 827,927
2,074,784 46.665 2322 2,123,771
$2,541,384 $36,869 $2.322 $2.600,575
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses

And Changes in Retained Earnings

ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Operating Revenuces:

Sales
Ciher revenues

Total revenues

Operating Expenses: . . .
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Purchased Services
Materials and supplics
Depreciation
Other operating expenscs

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Non-operating revenues:
Federal donated commodities
Investment revenue
Operating grants

Total non-operating revenues
Net Income

Retained Earnings, July 1
Retained Earnings, June30

Food Uniform School Adult
Service Supply Education Total
$2,548,174 $571,607 $1,790 $3,121,571
0 73 0 ’ 73

2,548,174 571,680 1,760 3,121,644

1,008,054 0 0 1,008,054..
330,073 0 0 330,073

76,097 0 ¢ 76,097

1,357,231 555,212 [ 1,916,443

153,759 0 H 153,759
8,770 0 0 8,770

2,933,984 355,212 0 3,493,196

(385,810) 12,468 1,790 (371,552)
177,022 ¢ 0 177,022

25,868 o 0 25,368

295,203 0 0 295203
498,093 0 0 498,093
112,233 12,468 1,750 126,541
666,657 34,197 532 701,386

$778.940 $48,665 $2322 $827,927

96



LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash reeeived from charges for servioes
Cash reccived from sales
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services
Cash payments for materials and supplies

Net cash provided by (used for) operating acitivities .

- Cash flows from noncapital financing
activities:

Opersating grants received

Net cash provided by nonoapital financing activities

Cash Flows from Capita] and Related Financing Activities:

Acquisition of Capital Asscty
Net cath used for capital and related
financing activitics
Cash Flows from Investing Activitics:
Investment income roceived
Net cash provided by investing
activitics
Net inorcase in cah and cash cquivalents
Cash and gash equivalents, July 1

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cagh provided by (used for) operating activitics:

Operating income (Joss)

Adpnstments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
nct cash provided by (used for) operating activitics:

Depreciation
Donated commodities nsed

Changes in asacts and [iabilitics:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
{Increase) decrease in inventory held for resale
(Increass) decrease in materials and

supplics inventory

Increase (decreasc) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued wages and benefits
Increasc (decrcasc) in compensated absences
increase (decrease) in deferred revenue

Total Adjustments

Net cash provided by (used for) opernting activities

Food Uniform School Adult
Service Suppl}' Education Tatals
50 $571,606 $1,720 $573,396
2,546,834 0 0 2,546,834
(77,084) 0 0 (77,0848
(1,286,879) 0 0 (1,286,879)
(1,057,341) (547,242) 0 _(1,604,583)
125,530 24,364 1,790 151,684
258,179 0 0 258,179
258,179 0 0 258,179
(54,895} { 0 {54,895y
(34,895) 0 [ (54,895)
25,868 0 0 25868
25,868 0 0 25,868
354,682 24,364 1,790 380,836
1,197,090 32432 332 1,230,054
1,551,772 36,796 2,322 1,610,890
(389,810) 12,468 1,790 (371,552)
153,759 0 0 153,759
177,022 4} 0 177,022
(1,340) {73) 0 (1,413)
7,507 0 o 7,507
26,242 0 0 26,242
115,322 11,969 0 127,29%
41,877 0 Q A18TT
937 0 0 237
(18,420) 0 o (18,420)
$11,340 11,896 0 523,236
$125,530 $24.364 $1,790 $151,684
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of services provided by one
department of agency to another department of agency on a cost reimbursement basis.

Special Rotary Fund - e

To account for all revenues and expenses related to field trips for the schools in the
district.
Employee Benefits

To account for monies received from other funds as payment for providing medical and
dental benefits. Currently, the district participates in a self-funded trust program with the

Butler County Health Plan.

Worker’s Compensation

To account for monies received from other funds as payment for claims and premium
incurred in the retrospectively rated worker’s compensation program.
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOQCL DISTRICT, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

June 30, 1999

Assets
Current Assets:
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents

Total Current Assets
Total Assets
Current Liabilities:
Arcourts Payable
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Retained Eamnings;
Unreserved
Total retained carhings

Total Liabilifies and fund equity

Special Employee Workers
Rotary Benefits Compensation Total
§116,00% $454,482 $484,385 $1,054,876
116,009 454,482 484,385 1,054,876
116,009 454,482 484,385 1,054,876
0 9,116 0 9,116
0 2,116 ¢ 9,116
0 9116 0 9,116
116,009 443,366 484,385 1,045 760
116,009 445,366 484383 1,045.760
$116,009 $454,482 $484.385 $1,054,875




LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Caombining Statement of Revenues, Expenses
And Changes in Retained Earnings

ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services
Tuition & fees
Extracurricular revenues

Total revenues

Operafing Expenses:
Materials and supplics
Other operating expenses

Total operating c¥penses

Net Income
Retained Eatnings, July 1

Retained Eatnings, June 30

Special Employee Workers
Rotary Benefits Compensation Total
50 $1,788,802 $0 $1,788,802
92,933 0 0 92,933
40,804 0 0 et 40,804
133,737 1,788,802 0 1,922,539
702 0 0 702
35,832 1343436 642,589 2,021,857
36,534 1,343,436 642,589 2,022,559
97,203 445366 (542,589) (100,020)
18,306 0 1,126,974 1,145,780
$116,009 $445,366 $484,385 $1,045,760
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash recejved from tuition and fees

Cash received from charges for services

Cash payments for other operating expenses
Net cash provided by (used for) operating acitivities
Cash flows from noncapital financing

activities:

Operating transfers in
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from investing activitics:
Imecest on investments

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1

Cash and cash squivalegts, June 30

Reconcdlistion of operating income (loss) to nat
cssh provided by (used for) operating activities;

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:

Changes in assote and liabifitics:
Increass (decrease) i accounts payable

Total Adjustenents
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

Special Employeee Worlers
Rotary Benefits Compensaiion Totals
$97,203 $36,534 50 $133,137
0 1,788,802 [y} 1,788,802
0 (1,370,854) (642, 589) (2,013,443)
97,203 454,482 (642,589 (90.904)
0 g 0 0
0 _ 4 1] 0
0 g g 1
97,203~ 454 482 {642,589) (50,904)
18,806 o 1,126,974 1,145,780
116,009 454,482 484,385 !i054i876
97,203 445366 (642,589 (100,020)
0 9,116 0 9,116
0 9,116 0 9,116
$97,203 $454.482 {$642,589) ($90,904)
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TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS

Trust and Agency Funds are used o account for assets held by a governmental unit in a
trustee ‘capacity and/or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other
governmental units, and/or other funds. These include Expendable Trust Funds and
Agency Funds. The following are descriptions of each:

CNE,

To account for donations from private individuals or corporations to be used according to
the terms of the donation for scholarships. Since there is only one Expendable Trust
Fund, no additional Statement of Revenues, Expenditures or Changes in Fund Balance is

presented here.

Agency Funds
Retirements Fund

To account for withholdings collected and held for the State Teachers Retirement System
and the State Employees Retirement System.

Student Activity Fund

To account for the resources which are collected by and belong to the various student
groups.
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

ALL FIDUCIARY FUND TYPES

June 30, 1999

General Student
Trust Retirements Activity
Expendable Trust Agency Agency Totals
Assets
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents $59,723 $88,565 $158,061 $306,349
Receivebles:
Accounts 0 0 1,966 1,965
Total Assets 39,723 88,365 160,027 308,315
Liabilities
Accounts Payable 1,457 79 10,420 11,956
Interfund Payable 0 15,239 2,162 21,401
Due to students 0 ¢ 147,445 147,445
Due to others 0 69,247 (] 65,247
Total liabilities 1,457 88,565 160,027 250,049
Fund balances:
Reserved:
Reserved for encumbrances 1,569 0 0 1,599
Unreserved:
Undesignated 56,667 0 0 56,667
Total fund equity (deficit) 58,266 1] 0 58,266
Total Liabilities and fund equity $59.723 $88.565 $160,027 $308,315
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Statement of Chartges It Assets and Liabilities
Agency Fund

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Axsets
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents
Accounts recoivable

Total Assets

Liabifif
Accounts payable
Interfimnd payabje
Pue to students

‘Total liabilities

Astets
Equity in pooled cash and cazh equivalents

Total Asscts

Linbikis
Accomnts payable
Inferfund payable
Dnue to others

Total Jiabilitics

Asztts
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Total Assets

Lizbilities
Accounts payable
Interfund payable
D to students
Due to others

Total fabilitics

Student Activity Fund
Beginning ) Ending
Balance Add_iﬁons . Deductions i Balance
$141,438 $16,623 50 $158,061
0 1,966 i} 1,966
141,438 T8 589 [ " 160,027
8,341 2,079 0 10,420
¢ 2,162 0 2,162
133,097 14,348 0 147,445
- $141.438 $18,589 50 $160.027
Retirements Fund
Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deductions Balance
$0 588,565 30 $88,565
0 $8,565 0 88,565
0 79 0 19
o 19,239 0 19,239
i) 69,247 0 £9,247
50 588,565 $0 $88,565
Total
Beam Fodi
Balance Additions Deductions Balance
$141,438 316,623 50 $158,061
0 90,531 0 90,531
141,438 107,154 0 243,592
8,341 2,158 0 10,499
0 21,401 0 21,401
133,097 14,348 4] 147,445
0 59,247 0 69,247
$141.438 $107,154 $0 $248,592

104



GENERAL FIXED ASSET ACCOUNT GROUP

This group of accounts is used to account for all sites, buildings, equipment and vehicles
not used in the operations of the Proprietary Funds. The majority of the District’s assets
are reflected here.
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Gehedule of General Pixed Agsets by Source
June 30, 1999

General fixed assets:
Land
Buildings
Equipment
Vehicles

Total General Fixed Assets

Investment in general fixed assets by source:
General Fund
Special Revenue Funds
Capital Projects Funds

Total General Fixed Assets

106

$12,973,091
83,869,049
13,435,203
6,052,097

$116,329,440

$40,690,317
903,381
74,735,742

$116,329,440



LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Schedule of General Fixed Assets

By Function and Type

June 30, 1999

Function Land Buildings Equipment Vehicles Total
Instruction:
Regular 50 $0 $6,807,707 50 $6,807,707
Other 0 0 155,397 0 155,397
Total instruction 0 0 6,963,104 0 6,963,104
Support services:
Pupil 0 0 477,077 0 477,077
Instructional staff 0 0 1,675,004 39,552 1,714,556
Administration [ 0 227,794 0 227,794
Fiscal 0 o 18,141 0 18,141
Business 0 o 16,386 0 16,386
Operations and maintenance 0 ¢ 279,335 166,192 445,527
Pupil transportation 0 0 0 5,755,012 5,755,012
Central 0 0 484,5%0 Y 484,590
Tota support services 0 0 3,178,327 3,960,756 9,039,083
Extracurricular activities 0 1] 310,669 (4] 310,669
Capital outlay 12,973,091 83,869,049 2,983,103 91,341 99,916,584
Total Gencral Fixed Assets 312,973,091 $83.869,049 $13,435,203 $6,052,097 $116,329,440
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOQOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets

Assets by Function

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Balance at Batance at
Function July 1, 1998 Additions Deductions June 30, 1999
Instruction:
Regular $6,722,379 $85,328 $o $6,807,707
Special 155,107 290 0 155,397
Total Instruction 6,877,486 85,618 0 6,963,104
Support services:
Pupil 464,921 12,156 0 477,077
Instructional staff 1,714,099 4357 v 1,714,556
Administration 226,094 1,700 0 227,794
Fiscal 14,542 3,599 0 18,141
Business 16,386 0 0 16,386
Operations and maintenatce 439,383 6,139 0 445,527
Pupil ransportation 5,755,012 0 0 5,755,012
Central 203,785 280,805 0 484,5%0
Total Support services 8,834,227 304,856 1] 9,139,083
Extracurricular 310,669 0 0 310,669
Capital ontlay 54,061,857 45,854,727 0 99,916,584
Construction in progress 45,986,352 0 45,986,352 0
Total General Fixed Assets $116,070,591 $46,245,201 $45,986,352 $116,329,440
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STATISTICAL SECTION
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TABLE 7

LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Computation of Legal Debt Margin
June 30, 1999 '

Assessed Valuation of District $1,519,076,098

Overall Direct Debt Limitation

Direct debt limitation

9% of assessed valuation 136,716,849
Amount availabie in Debt Service Fund 6,507,338
Gross indebtedness $77,923,414

Less: Debt exempt from limitation $1,520,000
Debt subject to 9% limitation 76,403,414
Legal debt margin within 9% limitation 566,820,773

Unvoted Direct Debt Limitation

Unvoted debt limitation

0.1% of assessed valuation 1,519,076
Amount available in Debt Service Fund

related to unvoted debt ¢
Gross indebtedness authorized by the Board t]

Less: Debt exempt from limitation 0
Debt subject to 0.1% limitation ' 0
Net legal debt margin within 0.1% limitation - $1,519,076

Energy Conservation Bond Limitation
Chio Revised Code Section 133.042

Debt limitation

0.9% of assessed valuation 13,671,685
Energy conservation notes authorized

by the Board 965,000
Legal debt margin within 0.9% limitation $12,676,685

Source: Lakota Local School District records.
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LAKOTAL LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt

June 30, 1999

Percent
Gross General Applicable to
Governmental Unit Obligation District
Direct:
Lakota Local School District $77,923,414 100%
Overlapping:
Butler County 38,500,000 29%
Union Township 6,720,000 92%
Liberty Township 100,286 100%
Fairfield City 9,957,086 1%
Monroe City 7,227,100 6%
Butler County Joint Vocational School 895,000 44%
Total overlapping: $63,399,472
Total direct and overlapping debt: $141,322,886

Source: Ohio Municipal Advisory Council.
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TABLE 8

Amount
Applicable to
District

$77,923,414

11,168,850
6,163,584
100,286
129,442
399,659

390,041

$18,351,862

$96,275,276
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO TABLE 10
Demographic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year PORU1%§i211 1) Epr‘asl‘lle;::t (1) Unemployment Rate (2)
1990 47,000 . 8,713 57
1991 47,000 ' - 9,361 59
1992 47,000 _ 10,205 6.6
1993 47,000 10,937 65
1994 47,000 11,637 5.3
1995 53,362 S 12,193 42
1996 53,362 12,700 42
1997 53,362 : 13,077 3.5
1998 53,362 ' 13,530 3.4
1999 53,362 , 14,139 N/A

Sources: (1) Lakota Local School District Records
(2) Butler County Economic Development Department
1999 Unemployment rate was unavailable.
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICYT, OHIO TABLE 11
Construction, Bank Deposits and Property Values
Last Ten Calendar Years

New Bank Property
Calendar Year Construction (1) Deposits (2} Values (3)
1990 N/A * $2,057,264,000 $621,055,600
1991 N/A * 2,104,239,000 $860,970,436
1992 N/A * 904,381,000 $912,391,161
1993 54,130,110 697,204,000 $970,223,983
1994 56,795,090 713,488,000 $1,103,205,743
1995 66,803,340 750,113,000 $1,182,406,619
1996 53,128,920 806,926,000 $1,264,832,436
1997 59,185,580 918,777,000 $1,386,250,958
1998 57,107,950 825,082,000 $1,451,542,533
1999 65,176,410 864,100,000 $1,519,076,098

N/A * - Records are unavailable for 1990-1992

Sources:

(1) Butler County Auditor

(2) Federal Reserve Bank of Cleveland - Amounts are for Butler County (Note: County
bank deposits measures total deposits for those banks deemed “domiciled”
within a given county.)

(3} Butler County Auditor, calendar year basis - total assessed values.
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO TABLE ]2
Real and Tangible Personal Property

Top Ten Principal Taxpayers

June 30, 1999

Total Assessed % of Total
Name of Taxpayer Valuation ___Assessed Valuation

Cincinnati Gas & Electric Co. (Cinergy) $56,845,920 3.7%
Cincinnati Bell Telephone 16,260,710 1.1%
Meijer, Inc. 7,884,140 0.5%
Dover Corporation 5,989,670 0.4%
Security Capital 5,892,050 0.4%
Walmart 5,824,050 0.4%
Shepard Color Company 4,548,130 0.3%
Security Capital Ind. Tr. 3,907,210 0.3%
New Hiphlands Greens 3,236,670 0.2%
First Security Bank 3,056,590 0.2%
All Other Taxpayers 1,405,630,958 - 92.5%

$1,519,076,098 100.0%

Source: Butler County Auditor
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LAKOTA LOCAL SCHQOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
State Basic Aid and 1.akota Per Pupil Cost
Last Ten Years

Table 14

Proposed Actual State Lakota
State Basic Percentage  General Fund Aid  Percentage Cost Per Percentage
Year Aid Per Pupii (1) (3) Change  Per Pupil Received Change Pupil in ADM (2) Increase
1998/1999  § 3,851 51%  notavailable N/A not available N/A
1997/1998 3,663 4.7% 1,978 11.2% 5,046 16.3%
1996/1997 3,500 5.6% 1,779 3.0% 4,337 56%
1995/1996 3,315 9.2% 1,727 4.6% 4,109 -2.0%
1994/1995 3,035 57% 1,652 -4.4% 4,193 -1.1%
1993/1994 2,871 1.9% 1,728 | 3.6% 4,241 2.6%
1992/1993 2,817 3.9% 1,669 5.8% 4,135 9.7%
1991/1992 2,710 2.8% 1,578 -5.5% 3,769 -2.5%
1990/1991 2,636 4.2% 1,669 4.7% 3,866 14.2%
1989/1990 2,530 N/A 1,595 N/A 3,384 N/A

Source: School district financial records.

{1} Actual state revenue increase percent fs less than reflected. This chart shows statewide per student allotment

which is then adjusted for individual school district characteristics.

{2) These costs are cited in the annual School Report filed with the Ohio Department of Education and State

Auditor's Office each year. They reflect only those expenditures associated with the General Fund school program.

(3) Increase to state basic aid per pupil are misleading without noting the corresponding increases to the local charge off
requirement, For Fiscal Year 1993-1994 and prior the local charge off was 20 mills of local effort. During Fiscal Year
1994-1995 that charge off requirement was increased to 21 mills and for Fiscal Year 1995-1996 it was increased to 22 mills

of the local effort

122



LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO Table 15
General Fund - Operating Expenditures Necessary to Educate

a District Student for Graduation

(Actual Dollars Expended by Year)

Lakota State Average
Grade Local School for All Butler County
Elementary School
1985-86 K § 2,557 $ 2975  § 2,569
1986-87 1 2,659 3,177 2,743
1987-88 2 2,823 3,379 2,946
1988-89 3 3,171 3,695 3,277
1989-90 4 3,384 3,961 3,509
1990-91 5 3,866 4,159 3,800
Secondary School
Enter Middle School
1991-92 6 3,769 4,255 3,873
1992-93 7 4,135 7 4,437 4,109
1993-94 8 4,241 4,640 4,219
Enter High School
1994-95 9 4,193 4,758 4,369
1995-96 10 4,109 4,915 4,326
1996-97 11 4,337 5,113 4,566
1997-98 12 5,046 5,341 4,918
Total $ 48,288 $ 54,805  § 49,223

Source: District Financial Records
General Fund Costs per Pupil-State of Ohio Department of Education.

Note: Data was not available from the Ohio Department of Education
for the 1998-99 school year.
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88 East Broad Street
STATE OF OHIO P.O. Box 1140

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Columbus, Ohio 43216-1140

Telephone  614-466-4514
JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE 800-282-0370

Facsimile 614-466-4490

LAKOTA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

BUTLER COUNTY

CLERK'S CERTIFICATION
This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office
of the Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and which is filed
in Columbus, Ohio.

desarn Poabbtt

CLERK OF THE BUREAU

CERTIFIED
MARCH 14, 2000
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